
 

 

 
Date of issue: 24th November 2009 

 
  

MEETING  AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 (Mr Kwatra (Chair), Councillors Chohan, Dale-Gough, 

Haines, Mann and Small) 
  
DATE AND TIME: THURSDAY, 3RD DECEMBER, 2009 AT 6.30 PM 
  
VENUE: COMMITTEE ROOM 2, TOWN HALL, BATH ROAD, 

SLOUGH 
  
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
OFFICER: 
(for all enquiries) 

 
CLAIRE GRAY 
01753 875120 

 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
You are requested to attend the above Meeting at the time and date indicated to deal 
with the business set out in the following agenda. 
 

 
 

RUTH BAGLEY 
Chief Executive 

 

NOTE TO MEMBERS 
This meeting is an approved duty for the payment of travel expenses. 

 
 

AGENDA 

 
PART 1 

 
AGENDA 
ITEM 

REPORT TITLE PAGE WARD 

 Apologies for absence.   
 



 
AGENDA 
ITEM 

REPORT TITLE PAGE WARD 

 

 

1.   Declarations of Interest 
 

  

2.   Minutes of the last meeting held on 14th 
September 2009 
 

1 - 4  

3.   Procurement Report 
 

5 - 6 All 

4.   Audit Commission - Audit Progress Report 
November 2009 
 

7 - 12 All 

5.   Audit Commission - Use of Resources 
 

13 - 36 All 

6.   Work of Internal Audit - 2nd Quarter 2009/10 
 

37 - 70 All 

7.   EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

  

 It is recommended that the press and public be 
excluded from the meeting during consideration of 
the items in Part II of the agenda as they involve 
the likely disclosure of exempt information relating 
to the financial and business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority) as 
defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A 
of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended). 
 

  

PART II 
 

8.   Procurement Report Part II 
 

71 - 72 All 

9.   Date of the next meeting 
 

  

 - Thursday, 4th March, 2010 
 

  

 
   

 Press and Public  

   
You are welcome to attend this meeting which is open to the press and public, as an 
observer.  You will however be asked to leave before the Committee considers any items 
in the Part II agenda.  Special facilities may be made available for disabled or non-English 
speaking persons.  Please contact the Democratic Services Officer shown above for 
further details. 
 

 



Audit Committee – Meeting held on Monday, 14th September, 2009. 
 

Present:-  Mr Kwatra (Chair), Councillors Chohan, Dale-Gough, Haines, Mann 
and Small. 

 
PART I 

 
13. Declarations of Interest  

 
None were received. 
 

14. Minutes  
 
The minutes of the last meeting held on 1st July, 2009 were approved as  a 
correct record. 
 

15. ISA 260 Report - Audit Commission  
 
The Panel considered the Draft Annual Governance Report (ISA 260) which 
was to be presented at the Full Council meeting on 24th September, 2009.  Phil 
Sharman, the District Auditor explained to Members that this was an updated 
version of the Governance Report but not the final version as there were several 
amendments still to be made.  Members were directed to the key messages 
contained within the findings.  The Auditors planned to issue an unqualified 
opinion on the financial statements as well as an unqualified value for money 
conclusion on the Council’s Use of Resources. Arrangements were deemed to 
be adequate and effective and proper arrangements for Use of Resources were 
consistent with professional practice and guidance.   The District Auditor 
highlighted the next steps for the Council as proposed by the Audit Commission 
and also several next steps which the Council should now consider.   
 
Members were advised that some matters had been brought to the attention of 
the Audit Commission for the 2009/10 financial year.  However, the Audit 
Commission were satisfied that these did not impact on the Statement of 
Accounts for the 2008/09 financial year.   
 
Members requested further information on adjusted amendments to the 
Statement of Accounts.  The first of these, that Voluntary Aided Schools should 
be removed from the balance sheet,  reflected newly agreed practice and 
represented a considerable adjustment of approximately £44m on fixed assets.  
A further adjustment regarding cash in deposits and cash overdrawn was 
originally shown as a net amount but should have been indicated individually.  
However, this made no difference to the overall position of the Council.  The 
Interim Strategic Director of Resources advised that, in principle the Council 
would not expect many items to be raised by the Auditors and that further 
scrutiny of the accounts was essential in order to eliminate this.  
 
A Member asked whether Officers approved of  the report’s action plan.  
Officers confirmed that they agreed with all recommendations and some of 
these had already been implemented.  The recommendations followed logically 
from the conclusions within the report and officers would actively seek to work 

AGENDA ITEM 2

Page 1



Audit Committee - 14.09.09 

towards them.  Members questioned why some of the issues with the statement 
of accounts had not been resolved earlier.  The District Auditor explained that  
the Audit could not begin until publication of the official notice. This left the Audit 
Commission with a tight deadline to fully audit the accounts.  Officers advised 
that there was a good relationship between Slough Borough Council and the 
Audit Commission. 
  
Members were advised that to ensure the 2009/10 accounts did not contain any 
errors there would be tighter management; these issues were not expected to 
again arise.  Members requested a report on how the errors from the pre-
audited statement of accounts had occurred and the remedies for these.  It was 
agreed that the scheduling of the Audit Committee and Council meetings should 
be looked into further in order to ensure a smoother transition for the Audited 
Statement of Accounts. 
 
Resolved -  
 
(a) That the contents of the Draft Annual Governance report be noted and that 

the final report be recommended for approval by full Council. 
 
(b) That a report be brought to a future meeting concerning the issues raised 

in the Pre-Audited Statement of Accounts. 
 

16. Use of Resources - Audit Commission  
 
Mark Catlow of the Audit Commission introduced the report.  The auditing 
framework for this area had changed from previous years.  The Audit 
Commission  now assessed evidence of outcomes from the use of resources. 
The report was to form part of the Comprehensive Area Assessment.  The Use 
of Resources was widely regarded as now being a harder test and the 
Committee were advised that previous ratings should not be used as a 
comparison.  The Council received ‘level 2’ which meant it had met the minimum 
requirements and performed adequately.   
 
The Audit Commission explained to the Committee the key recommendations 
from the report.  Members were advised of three key recommendations for 
managing finances.  These included demonstrating value for money more 
clearly via service level benchmarking and analysis of service unit and 
transaction costs. This recommendation was currently being addressed.  A 
Member asked whether there were any examples of service level benchmarking 
and about the financial implications of achieving a top performance level.  The 
performance had specific costs attached to it which would require the Council to 
look further into.  It was noted that it was important to look at the way support 
services fed into front line services and exactly what back office costs were in 
relation to front office costs.  Some work had begun on this and this needed to 
continue.   
 
A Member asked about the recommendations included in the report under 
‘governing the business’ and asked what benefit would it have to Slough to 
achieve the higher level 3.  The Audit Commission reported that some had 
questioned the necessity for achieving the highest level and it had been 

Page 2



Audit Committee - 14.09.09 

suggested that it would not be worth achieving this on a value for money basis.  
However, officers reported that achieving level 3 was considered to represent 
good value for money as it ensured that developed good practice was 
implemented properly and there was measurable results for delivery.  Members 
were advised that there was a statutory requirement for local authorities to 
continue to improve and level 3 would show what the Council is achieving from 
its resources.   
 
A Member asked about comments in the report which referred to the senior 
management team and procurement arrangements which suggested that 
greater management capacity was required to oversee the arrangements.  The 
Council was addressing this, for example a post of Assistant Director for 
Procurement had recently been created and appointed to.  The Committee 
requested that a paper be brough to the next meeting to highlight the progress 
and savings made in this area.  A Member asked about the business continuity 
plan. Officers responded that there had been significant progress and that there 
was a plan in place for “life and limb services” and co-ordinating a response at a 
corporate level.  However officers had not been able to satisfy this requirement 
within the review of Use of Resources.   
 
Resolved – That the Council’s Use of Resources report be noted. 
 

17. Work of Internal Audit - 1st Quarter 2009/10  
 
The Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management (HoIA&RM) advised Members 
of the audit days which had been added and removed to the Audit Plan for 
2009/10.  Members were advised that the audit of the West Wing would not be 
taking place due to issues surrounding the future of the facility and not, as 
stated in the report, because the facility was being closed.  The library audit had 
been deleted as the library service was undergoing a fundamental review.  The 
Audit team were already part way through the audit of one library and this had 
been completed.   
 
The Audit Committee were advised that there were currently 2½ vacant posts in 
the Internal Audit section.  These were currently being covered by a partnering 
arrangement with Deloitte and Touche (D&T).  It was noted that this did not go 
through a full tender process but it was agreed by the Procurement and Legal 
sections to use D&T through a Framework Agreement with the London Borough 
of Croydon. This was a cost effective solution, the cost of the in house provision 
was £220 per day. The cost of using D&T was approx £280 per day whereas the 
audit costs of other agencies came out closer to £300 per day.   Members asked 
whether it would be possible to have a flexible arrangement using officers from 
other authorities to improve costs.  The HoIA&RM advised that there was not 
capacity to do this and although it had been attempted in the past it was difficult 
to put in place due to some of the expertise needed, for example in IT Audits. 
 
A Member asked whether the Internal Audit would be included in considerations 
for the Shared Services arrangements.  It was confirmed that Audit would be 
included when considering different options.   
 

Page 3



Audit Committee - 14.09.09 

With regard to counter fraud arrangements it was noted that there were 
proactive and reactive measures.  A training package had been purchased 
which was a web based electronic programme which all policies would be 
included on and this should ensure a accurate record of all who have completed 
training.  It was noted that this would be rolled out by December to the first 
group of officers and it would then be rolled out to Members. Members 
commented that this was an excellent idea and would like to be the first 
members to try this.  It was agreed that the antifraud programme would be 
brought to the next meeting of the Committee and the controls around various 
issues would be advised to Members.   
 
The HoIA&RM confirmed that a new electronic audit package had been a very 
useful tool in accurately monitoring the work of Audit Officers.  Members were 
advised of the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) results which were received in May 
2009.  An initial review of NFI matches showed 3,734 of which 2,948 were of a 
high level.  Approximately 1,200 of these were Council Tax Single Person 
Discount (SPD) matches which appeared to show that there were 2 or 3 people 
residing at an address currently receiving SPD.  Members all agreed that this 
was an excellent initiative and if possible should be publicised as a good news 
story for the Council. 
 
Members were advised of a number of different recommendations that Internal 
Audit had made when carrying out iaudits for different sections.  A number of 
these had yet to be fully implemented and these were reported to the Audit 
Committee.  Members were concerned about the seemingly long delays in 
implementing some of the recommendations.  Members agreed that in future a 
draft report should be issued to Officers responsible for service areas in which 
recommendations had not been implemented and if these were then still not 
resolved by a specified date that officer should be invited to attend the Audit 
Committee to provide Members with further information on resolving these 
matters. 
 
Resolved –  That the report be noted and that the recommendation of the Audit 

Committee be put in place. 
 

18. Anti-Fraud Strategy  
 
Members were provided with the Anti-Fraud Strategy along with the tackling 
fraud initiative and agreed that if any issues arose from these documents they 
would be discussed at the next meeting of the Audit Committee. 
 
 

Chair 
 
(Note: The Meeting opened at 6.30 pm and closed at 9.10 pm) 
 

Page 4



                                                                                                                                                              

 
Procurement Report 

 

Author:  
Joanna Head, Assistant Director Commissioning, 
Procurement & Shared Services  

Date  
December 2009   

Procurement Activity January 2009 – To Date  

Oracle – Shared Services  

 
To support Slough Borough Council’s (SBC) Shared Services Programme a review of the 
current Oracle licensing model was required.  SBC had a variety of licensing metrics. 
 
 A review was undertaken of the licensing metrics and modules/applications owned by 
SBC, Cambridgeshire County Council (CCC) and Northamptonshire County Council 
(NCC). A decision was made to ensure all three local authorities were licensed identically.  
 
Negotiations with Oracle increased the application licenses discount from 42% to 84% for 
new purchases and a 90% discount was obtained for the migration of existing licenses to 
the new Enterprise Licensing Model for all three authorities.   
 
These discounts resulted in a saving of £242,647.80 saving/cost avoidance for SBC. 
 

 

Oracle – Technical Licenses   

 
Slough Borough Council were unknowingly under licensed for a number of Technical 
Database Licenses. Negotiations with Oracle and an Oracle Partner (SCC) resulted in the 
procurement of these licenses with a 53.5% discount.  
 
This discount resulted in a £31,986.81 saving/cost avoidance for SBC. 
 

 

BT 

BT currently provide both voice and data lines (SBC with 8 x ISDN2e, 8 x ISDN30 and 330 
x PSTN lines) 
.  
2008-2009 BT invoices SBC 886 invoices.  
 
Currently SBC are charged every invoice a £10.00 late payment fee and £9.50 fee for not 
paying by Direct Debit.  
 
These costs can be removed by utilising BT’s One Bill Solution. By consolidating 2+ lines  
 
onto one bill removes the £10.00 and £9.50 charges.  
 
Procurement is currently working with Service users to identify “clusters” of lines to bundle 
onto One Bill’s.  

AGENDA ITEM 3

Page 5



                                                                                                                                                              

 
The invoices for 63 Traffic Light Circuits have been migrated to a BT One Bill.  This alone 
results in a £4,000 saving. 
  

 

Scottish Southern Electric  

 
SBC’s Electricity supply is provided by Scottish Southern Electricity under the NHS PASA 
(Purchasing & Supply Agency) Shared Services Agreement with all other Berkshire 
Authorities.  
 
Street lighting received an invoice for £24,946 for Triad Reconciliation. Upon querying the 
invoice with the Account Manager it was agreed that the invoice had been issued in error.  
 
This results in a £29,946 cost avoidance.  

 

 

Other  

 
Procurement recently tendered and awarded a new contract for IT Peripherals and 
Consumables. Previously SBC used approx 10 different suppliers for toners and 
cartridges.  The contract is currently used by SBC and St Bernard’s Catholic Grammar 
School is trialling the contract.  
 
Procurement are currently tendering the following contracts: 

1. Milk (including schools) 
2. Work wear 
3. Cleaning Consumables  

 

 
Further areas covered in the Part II to this report. 

Page 6



Audit Progress 
Report

November 2009
Slough Council

Audit 2009/10

AGENDA ITEM 4

Page 7



Status of our reports 

The Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the Audit 
Commission explains the respective responsibilities of auditors and of the audited 
body. Reports prepared by appointed auditors are addressed to
non-executive directors/members or officers. They are prepared for the sole use of the 
audited body. Auditors accept no responsibility to: 

any director/member or officer in their individual capacity; or  

any third party.

Contents

2009/10 Audit Plan 3

The Audit Commission 6

Page 8



2
0
0
9
/1

0
 A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 

3
 

  
S

lo
u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 2
0
0
9
/1

0
 A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 

1
T

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

a
b
le

 s
u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
s
 t

h
e
 m

a
in

 o
u
tp

u
ts

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 a

u
d
it
 t

o
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 i
n
d
ic

a
ti
v
e
 d

a
te

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 p
ro

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
fi
n
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 

re
p
o
rt

s
. 

T
h
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

 r
e
la

te
s
 o

n
ly

 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

o
d
e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 A

u
d
it
 a

n
d
 e

x
c
lu

d
e
s
 C

A
A

 r
e
la

te
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d

s
e
p
a
ra

te
ly

. 
T

h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 o

n
 a

 q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 b

a
s
is

 a
n
d
 u

s
e

d
 t

o
 t

ra
c
k
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 a

u
d
it
 a

t 
o
u
r 

q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w

it
h

s
e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 a

s
 a

 s
ta

n
d
in

g
 i
te

m
 t

o
 e

a
c
h
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

T
h
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

 w
ill

 i
n
fo

rm
A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

fo
rt

h
c
o
m

in
g
 a

u
d
it
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 w

h
e
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 a

re
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
.

R
e

p
o

rt
A

C
 k

e
y
 

c
o

n
ta

c
t

C
o
u
n
c
il 

c
o

n
ta

c
t

E
x
p
e
c
te

d
re

p
o

rt
R

e
p
o
rt

e
d

to
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e

C
o

m
m

e
n

t

A
u
d
it
 f

e
e
 l
e
tt
e
r 

a
n
d
 

o
u
tl
in

e
 a

u
d
it
 p

la
n
 

2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
la

s
ta

ir
R

a
n
k
in

e
A

u
d
it

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0

9
 

A
g
re

e
d
  

 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

o
p
in

io
n
 p

la
n
 f

o
r 

2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
la

s
ta

ir
R

a
n
k
in

e
A

n
n
a
l 
N

a
y
a
r 

J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
0
 

 
N

o
t 

y
e
t 

d
u
e
 

S
h
a
re

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

re
v
ie

w
A

la
s
ta

ir
R

a
n
k
in

e
E

liz
 F

ra
w

le
y
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
 

 
N

o
t 

y
e
t 

d
u
e
 

P
re

-s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 a
u
d
it
 

m
e

m
o

ra
n

d
u

m
A

la
s
ta

ir
R

a
n
k
in

e
A

n
n
a
l 
N

a
y
a
r 

M
a
y
 2

0
1
0
 

 
N

o
t 

y
e
t 

d
u
e
 

Page 9



2
0

0
9

/1
0

 A
u

d
it

 P
la

n
 

S
lo

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 
4

A
n
n
u
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

R
e

p
o

rt
  

(I
S

A
2

6
0

) 
P

h
il

S
h
a
rm

a
n

A
u
d
it

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
/

J
u
lie

 E
v
a

n
s
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

2
0
1
0

 
N

o
t 

y
e

t 
d

u
e

 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 o
p
in

io
n

P
h
il

S
h
a
rm

a
n

A
u
d
it

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
/

J
u
lie

 E
v
a

n
s
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

2
0
1
0

 
N

o
t 

y
e

t 
d

u
e

 

F
in

a
l 
A

c
c
o

u
n
ts

 
m

e
m

o
ra

n
d

u
m

A
la

s
ta

ir
R

a
n
k
in

e
A

n
n
a
l 
N

a
y
a
r 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
 

 
N

o
t 

y
e
t 

d
u
e
 

U
s
e
 o

f 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

U
s
e
 o

f 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

- 
F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
la

s
ta

ir
R

a
n
k
in

e
/

K
a

m
S

h
a
rg

ill

K
e
v
in

G
o
rd

o
n
/J

u
lie

E
v
a
n
s

S
e
p
t 

2
0
1
0
 

 
N

o
t 

y
e
t 

d
u
e
 

U
s
e
 o

f 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

 -
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 

K
a

m
S

h
a
rg

ill
K

e
v
in

G
o
rd

o
n
/J

u
lie

E
v
a
n
s

T
o
 b

e
 

c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d

 
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 i
s
 a

 n
e
w

 l
in

e
 o

f 
e
n
q
u
ir
y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 U

s
e
 o

f 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 

T
o
 

a
u
g
m

e
n
t 

o
u
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

w
e
 w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

h
o
w

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
lo

n
g
 w

it
h
 i
ts

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 
is

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 a
n

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 
th

is
 i
s
s
u
e
. 

T
h
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 i
n
to

 
o
u
r 

U
s
e
 o

f 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

 b
u
t 

th
e
re

 
m

a
y
 b

e
 s

c
o

p
e

 t
o

 r
e

p
o

rt
 o

u
r 

fi
n

d
in

g
s
 

s
e
p
a
ra

te
ly

. 
W

e
 w

ill
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
n
 o

p
e
n
 

d
ia

lo
g
u
e
 w

it
h
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

. 

U
s
e
 o

f 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

- 
m

e
d

iu
m

 t
e

rm
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 

A
la

s
ta

ir
R

a
n
k
in

e
J
u
lie

 E
v
a

n
s
/ 

A
n
n
a

l 
N

a
y
a
r 

T
o
 b

e
 

c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d

 
W

e
 w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 

c
lo

s
in

g
 i
ts

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 g

a
p
s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

a
n
d
 m

e
d
iu

m
 t

e
rm

 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 c

y
c
le

s
. 

T
h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

s
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

o
u
r 

U
s
e
 o

f 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 b

u
t 

m
a
y
 

Page 10



2
0
0
9
/1

0
 A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 

5
 

  
S

lo
u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

b
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 e

a
rl
ie

r 
s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 f

in
d

in
g

s
. 

V
F

M
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

- 
F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

2
0
0
9
/1

0

P
h
il

S
h
a
rm

a
n

A
u
d
it

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
/

J
u
lie

 E
v
a

n
s
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

2
0
1
0

S
e
p
t 

2
0
0
9
 

N
o
t 

y
e
t 

d
u
e
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 L

e
tt

e
r 

2
0
1
0

P
h
il

S
h
a
rm

a
n

C
a
b
in

e
t/
 R

u
th

 
B

a
g
le

y
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r

2
0
1
0

 
N

o
t 

y
e

t 
d

u
e

 

Page 11



The Audit Commission 

The Audit Commission 

The Audit Commission is an independent watchdog, driving economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in local public services to deliver better outcomes for everyone. 

Our work across local government, health, housing, community safety and fire and rescue 
services means that we have a unique perspective. We promote value for money for 
taxpayers, auditing the £200 billion spent by 11,000 local public bodies.

As a force for improvement, we work in partnership to assess local public services and 
make practical recommendations for promoting a better quality of life for local people. 

Copies of this report 

If you require further copies of this report, or a copy in large print, in Braille, on tape, or in a 
language other than English, please call 0844 798 7070. 

© Audit Commission 2008 

For further information on the work of the Commission please contact: 

Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London SW1P 4HQ  

Tel: 0844 798 1212  Fax: 0844 798 2945  Textphone (minicom): 0844 798 2946 

www.audit-commission.gov.uk

Page 12



Use of 
Resources
Slough Borough Council

Audit 2008/09 

November 2009 

AGENDA ITEM 5

Page 13



Status of our reports 

The Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the Audit 
Commission explains the respective responsibilities of auditors and of the audited body. 
Reports prepared by appointed auditors are addressed to non-executive 
directors/members or officers. They are prepared for the sole use of the audited body. 
Auditors accept no responsibility to: 

any director/member or officer in their individual capacity; or  

any third party.

Contents

Summary 3

Introduction 4

Use of resources judgements 6

Use of resources 2009/10 10

Appendix 1 – Use of resources key findings and conclusions 12

Appendix 2 – Action plan 21

Page 14



Summary 

3   Slough Borough Council 

Summary
This report summarises our key findings from our assessment of how Slough BC is 
managing and using its resources to deliver value for money and better and 
sustainable outcomes for local people.

1 Slough Borough Council’s arrangements to manage its finances and govern its 
business are consistent with established professional practice and guidance, meet 
statutory requirements and operate effectively. 

2 Across the Council, good progress is being made to strengthen the way it plans and 
manages its operations, including: 

governing partnerships; 

risk management; 

data quality; 

service and financial planning. 

3 The Council needs now to embed these changes and demonstrate how these changes 
are leading to improved outcomes. 

4 One area where arrangements are clearly delivering improved outcomes is asset 
management. Here, the Council’s approach is forward looking, proactive and identifies 
and develops opportunities for improvement. Assets are managed with clear forward 
looking strategic goals showing how they will be used to deliver corporate priorities, 
now and in the future 

5 Whilst the Council is working to minimise its use of natural resources, more work is 
needed to ensure that this is effective. Improved target setting and processes to 
monitor progress is needed to enable more effective scrutiny and challenge of 
proposals to fully develop an effective policy framework and deliver outcomes. 

Page 15



Introduction

Slough Borough Council  4

Introduction
6 This report sets out my conclusions on how well Slough BC is managing and using its 

resources to deliver value for money and better and sustainable outcomes for local 
people and give scored use of resources theme judgements.

7 In forming my scored theme judgements, I have followed the methodology set out in 
the use of resources framework: overall approach and key lines of enquiry (KLOE) 
document and the use of resources auditor guidance. For each of the specific risks 
identified in relation to our use of resources work, which were set out in our audit plan, 
we considered the arrangements put in place by the Slough BC to mitigate the risk and 
plan our work accordingly. This work is now complete.

Use of resources framework 

8 From 2008/09, the new use of resources assessment forms part of the Comprehensive 
Area Assessment (CAA) and comprises three themes that focus on: 

sound and strategic financial management; 

strategic commissioning and good governance; and 

the management of natural resources, assets and people. 

9 Figure 1 illustrates the three themes.

Figure 1 Use of Resources Framework 

Page 16



Introduction

5   Slough Borough Council 

10 The scores for each theme are based on the scores reached by auditors on underlying 
KLOE. The KLOE are generic and applicable equally to all organisations subject to use 
of resources judgements under CAA. This promotes consistency, demonstrating all 
organisations within a CAA area are treated in the same way, and to the same 
standards.

11 The Commission specifies in its annual work programme and fees document, which 
KLOE are assessed over the coming year.

12 Judgements have been made for each KLOE using the Commission’s current four 
point scale from 1 to 4, with 4 being the highest, please see Table 1. Level 1 
represents a failure to meet the minimum requirements at level 2. 

Table 1 Levels of performance 

Level 1 Does not meet minimum requirements – performs poorly 

Level 2 Meets minimum requirements – performs adequately 

Level 3 Exceeds minimum requirements – performs well 

Level 4 Significantly exceeds minimum requirements – performs excellently 

Source: use of resources framework: overall approach and KLOE document

13 The new use of resources framework and scoring system introduced for 2008/09 
marks a significant change in the Audit Commission approach. Accordingly the 
reported results and scores are not comparable with those delivered under the 
previous system which ended in the 2007/08 year.

Page 17



Use of resources judgements 

Slough Borough Council  6

Use of resources judgements 

Scored judgements 

14 Slough BC’s use of resources theme scores are shown in Table 2. The reasons for 
scores are reflected in the commentary for each KLOE provided in Appendix 1 

Table 2 Use of resources theme scores  

Use of resources theme Scored judgement 

Managing finances 

How effectively does the organisation manage its finances to 
deliver value for money? 

2

Governing the business 

How well does the organisation govern itself and commission 
services that provide value for money and deliver better 
outcomes for local people? 

2

Managing resources 

How well does the organisation manage its natural resources, 
physical assets and people to meet current and future needs 
and deliver value for money? 

2

Managing finances

15 Slough Borough Council’s arrangements to manage its finances are consistent with 
established professional practice and guidance, meet statutory requirements and 
operate effectively. 

16 The Council’s financial planning processes are developing from a sound base and 
within a medium term financial planning framework. The time-horizon of this process 
can be expanded to help better demonstrate the affordability of longer term strategic 
objectives and the impact of invest to save projects or savings proposals.

17 Resource allocation within the Council is driven by corporate priorities and service 
plans alongside available resources. Financial and performance outcomes are 
becoming more integrated and there is good challenge of costs involving both 
Members and officers. Service level benchmarking and use of unit costs is developing. 
The Council delivers significant annual efficiency savings and has exceeded its 
Gershon efficiency target by several million pounds.  

Page 18



Use of resources judgements 

7   Slough Borough Council 

18 Engagement with communities and Members during the budget process is strong and 
stakeholder views are taken into account through a series of workshops with a range 
of different groups. 

19 A balanced financial outturn in 2008/09 was achieved but there is significant pressure 
on future budgets with reserves at minimum assessed prudent levels and emerging 
concerns that agreed savings are not deliverable. Stronger, more detailed savings 
plans, moving away from an annual planning cycle are needed to bridge an estimated 
a budget gap of £22m over the next three years. These are being addressed as part of 
the current PPRG process 

20 Internal financial reporting processes are timely and reliable more but work is needed 
to fully meet the needs of internal users by providing bespoke and tailored reporting 
options.

21 External financial reporting processes are developing strongly and the Council 
prepares accounts that meet statutory requirements, financial reporting standards and 
presents fairly its financial performance and position. This will be further enhanced in 
2008/09 when the Council publishes its first annual report. 

Key recommendations 

R1 Use the principles outlined in the Audit Commission report 'World class financial 
management' to strengthen medium to long-term financial planning. This includes: 

greater modelling of different scenarios and outcomes; 

integration with risk management; 

delivering a clear 'financial road map' explaining where the Council is, where it 
wants to go and what resources are needed (or can be redirected) to get there.

R2 Review how the PPRG process operates to approve savings proposals. Move 
away from an annual savings exercise to longer term savings proposals that can 
properly accommodate 'invest to save' initiatives or more strategic reallocation 
decisions.

R3 Demonstrate VFM more clearly via service level benchmarking and analysis of 
service unit and transaction costs and effective evaluation of projects.

Governing the business 

22 Slough Borough Council’s arrangements for governing the business are consistent 
with established professional practice and guidance, meet statutory requirements and 
operate effectively. 

23 Executive, non-executive and roles and responsibilities within this structure are clear 
and supported by productive working relationships between Members and officers. 
Development training is offered to Members but the take-up of this has sometimes 
been low, leading the Council to recently act on this. 

Page 19



Use of resources judgements 

Slough Borough Council  8

24 The Council has a sound system of internal control including an Audit Committee, 
Internal Audit and a policy and guidance framework but it is not clear how compliance 
with this framework is monitored and more can be done to promote it. Within this 
framework the Council’s risk management arrangements are developing and are 
reported to CMT, Cabinet and the Audit Committee. These arrangements still need to 
become more embedded however. 

25 The Audit Committee is balanced in membership and has an independent chair. The 
Annual Governance statement focuses action by the Council over governance matters. 
The Council’s Standards Committee complies with the expectations of the Standards 
Board but needs to do more to actively promote and monitor standards within the 
Council. 

26 Procurement actions are shaped by corporate priorities and intended outcomes, but 
progress has been hampered until recently by a lack of capacity. Some progress in this 
area has, however, been made.

27 A data quality strategy and protocol were agreed in March 2009, too recently to assess 
any impact. It is clear however that information is used by the Council to review 
underperformance and take action and services have improved as a result of this data 
use.

28 No corporate business continuity plan exists but arrangements for life and limb 
services have been developed and are in place. 

29 Appropriate anti-fraud and corruption policies are in place, but it has not been clear 
how the Council intended to monitor the delivery of these. The Audit Committee has 
since been presented with a vehicle to monitor the delivery of this strategy. At  
July 2009, we noted that very few NFI data matches had been recorded as 
investigated by the Council, although we understand that progress is now being made.

Key recommendations 

R4 The Audit Committee needs to be clear how it can, and does, monitor compliance 
with relevant codes and procedures and how it demonstrates the impact of its work. 
In particular, it needs to consider how to monitor delivery and impact of the counter 
fraud strategy. 

R5 The Standards Committee needs to be clear how it can, and does, monitor 
compliance with relevant codes and procedures and demonstrate the impact of its 
work. It needs to monitor standards of behaviours within partnerships and do more 
to actively promote standards across the Council. 

R6 Focus on fully embedding new corporate arrangements for risk management, 
procurement, governance in partnerships and data quality. Assess the impact of 
these in practice. 

Page 20



Use of resources judgements 

9   Slough Borough Council 

Managing resources

30 Slough Borough Council’s arrangements for managing its resources are consistent 
with established professional practice and guidance, meet statutory requirements and 
operate effectively.

31 For asset management, the Council's arrangements go beyond this baseline. The 
Council’s approach is forward looking, proactive and identifies and develops 
opportunities for improvement. Assets are managed with clear forward looking 
strategic goals showing how they will be used to deliver corporate priorities, now and in 
the future. 

32 The Council is implementing an award winning accommodation strategy supported by 
a new property management system. This system updates Performance Indicators 
which feeds the property review process. Priority is given to capital projects based on a 
formal, objective approval process targeting investments to priority areas. The Heart of 
Slough project aims to deliver significant infrastructure improvements and potential 
economic benefits to the area with capital investment of over £400m secured. In 
education 8 schools have been rebuilt or replaced since 2005. The ALMO has levered 
in significant capital investment into improving public housing. 

33 Balanced against this, the Council’s arrangements to make effective use of natural 
resources are developing but are still at an early stage overall. The Council 
understands the main influences behind its use of natural resources and is committed 
to reducing its impact on the environment. Progress prior to 2008/09 was slow but has 
accelerated over the last 12 months. Baseline information on the consumption of 
natural resources, including water and energy usage, has recently been finalised. 

34 Easy wins are being sought including the management of waste and recycling 
schemes in Council buildings and promoting staff car travel reduction. Despite this, a 
more co-ordinated approach is needed to reduce the internal demand for natural 
resources, including targets and system to monitor progress against them. 

35 A carbon management board has been established to ensure that carbon reduction 
targets are met and there are strong links through this board to external partners. A 
climate change strategy is currently under development. 

Key recommendations 

R7 Improve the approach adopted towards the management of the natural resources 
by ensuring that this is co-ordinated and linked to targets and a system to monitor 
progress against them 

Detailed findings

36 The key findings and conclusions for the three themes, and the underlying KLOE, are 
summarised in Appendix 1. All recommendations arising from our work are included as 
Appendix 2. 

Page 21



Use of resources 2009/10 

Slough Borough Council  10

Use of resources 2009/10
37 The key lines of enquiry specified for the assessment are set out in the Audit 

Commission’s work programme and scales of fees 2009/10. KLOE 3.1 - Natural 
resources will not be assessed for single tier and county councils in 2009/10 but 
instead a new KLOE, 3.3 - Workforce will apply.  

38 My work on use of resources informs my 2009/10 value for money conclusion.

39 In my letter of 9 April 2009 about the audit fee for 2009/10, I identified those significant 
risks which would require specific consideration in relation to my value for money 
conclusion. For each risk, I consider the arrangements put in place by the Council to 
mitigate the risk, and plan my work accordingly. Table 3 sets out my initial risk 
assessment and the planned audit response.

Table 3 Initial risk assessment 

Risk Planned work Timing of work 

The Council is facing significant 
financial pressures over the 
short and medium term.

The Council needs to deliver 
budget savings to achieve a 
stable financial position.  

We also consider this to be a 
significant risk to our opinion 
audit

We will review the Council’s 
approach to closing funding 
gaps during the 2009/10 budget 
and medium term planning 
cycles.

We will also focus on your 
processes to recognise income 
and expenditure in the correct 
accounting periods. 

April 2009 to
March 2010 

The Council is entering into an 
arrangement with two other 
councils for the provision of 
shared back office services. 

This can offer significant 
economies of scale but service 
performance, business 
continuity and contractual risks 
will need managing.

We also consider this a 
significant risk to our opinion 
audit.

We will liaise with both Slough 
Borough Council and the 
auditors of the intended partner 
authorities to track the Council's 
progress in managing the 
associated risks and comment 
as appropriate 

December 2009 to 
February 2010 

Page 22



Use of resources 2009/10 

11   Slough Borough Council 

Risk Planned work Timing of work 

In common with other Berkshire 
public sector bodies, the 
Council faces significant 
challenges in addressing 
current and future workforce 
issues, putting in place effective 
programmes of action to attract, 
retain, develop and motivate a 
‘fit for the future’ workforce. 

Workforce planning is a new line 
of enquiry in our use of 
resources assessment for 
2009/10.

To augment our assessment we 
will review how the Council, 
along with its partners, is 
developing an effective strategic 
approach to this issue 

Dates currently 
being finalised with 
the Council 

40 I have also considered whether there are any additional risks arising from my 2008/09 
value for money conclusion which require a specific attention in 2009/10. At this stage I 
have not identified any additional risks in relation to my 2009/10 value for money 
conclusion. I will however keep this aspect under review and communicate any new 
issues when refreshing the audit plan later in the year. 

Page 23



 A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 –

 U
s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 k

e
y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
  

S
lo

u
g
h
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 
1
2

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 –
 U

s
e

 o
f 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 k

e
y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 
c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
s

T
h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

a
b
le

s
 s

u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
 t

h
e
 k

e
y
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 k

e
y
 l
in

e
s
 o

f 
e
n
q
u
ir
y
 w

it
h
in

 e
a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 t

h
re

e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s

th
e

m
e

s
.

T
h

e
m

e
 1

 -
 m

a
n

a
g

in
g

 f
in

a
n

c
e
s
 

H
o
w

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 d
o
e
s
 t

h
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 i
ts

 f
in

a
n
c
e
s
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

v
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
?

T
h

e
m

e
 1

 s
c

o
re

 
2

K
e

y
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 

K
L

O
E

 1
.1

 (
fi
n
a

n
c
ia

l 
p

la
n

n
in

g
) 

s
c
o
re

 
2

D
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 p

la
n

 i
ts

 f
in

a
n
c
e
s
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

it
s
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 s
e
c
u
re

 s
o

u
n

d
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

?
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
e
s
 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 i
ts

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e
s
 a

n
d

 a
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 m
e

d
iu

m
 t
e

rm
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

la
n

. 
 

T
h

e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 h

o
ri
z
o

n
 e

x
te

n
d

s
 o

v
e

r 
3

 t
o

 5
 y

e
a

rs
, 
a
s
 i
s
 c

o
m

m
o

n
 i
n

 m
a

n
y
 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o
u

n
c
ils

. 
B

e
s
t 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 
c
a
s
e
 s

tu
d
ie

s
 s

u
g
g
e
s
t 

e
x
te

n
d

in
g

 t
h

is
 o

v
e

r 
lo

n
g

e
r 

p
e

ri
o
d

s
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 b

e
n
e

fi
c
ia

l.
 A

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 n
e

c
e
s
s
a

ri
ly

 m
o
re

 s
p
e

c
u

la
ti
v
e

, 
th

is
 w

o
u

ld
 h

e
lp

 b
e

tt
e

r 
d
e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

 t
h

a
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 a

re
 

a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 a
n
d
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
in

v
e
s
t 
to

 s
a
v
e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 o
r 

lo
n
g
e
r 

te
rm

 s
a
v
in

g
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

. 
 

T
h

e
 P

P
R

G
 (

p
o

lic
y
 a

n
d

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
 g

ro
u

p
) 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 h

e
lp

s
 e

n
s
u
re

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 d

ri
v
e
n
 b

y
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

la
n
s
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 b

y
 

b
u

d
g
e

ts
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
o
u

rc
e
s
. 
P

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 t
o

 i
n

te
g

ra
te

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
a

n
d

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
. 
F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
ri
s
k
s
 a

re
 a

s
s
e

s
s
e
d
, 
b
u
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 m

o
re

 t
o
 d

o
 t
o
 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 t
h
a
t 
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 r

is
k
s
 a

re
 f
u
lly

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
. 
O

v
e

ra
ll 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e
r 

im
p

ro
v
in

g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

w
it
h

in
 a

 t
ig

h
t 
re

s
o

u
rc

in
g

 
p
o
s
it
io

n
. 
 

E
n

g
a

g
e
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 m
e
m

b
e

rs
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t
h
e

 a
n

n
u
a

l 
b

u
d
g

e
t 
p

ro
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 s

tr
o

n
g

; 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il’

s
 n

e
w

 m
e

d
iu

m
 t
e

rm
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

la
n

 i
s
 m

o
re

 c
o
m

p
re

h
e

n
s
iv

e
 

a
n

d
 s

ta
k
e
h

o
ld

e
r 

v
ie

w
s
 a

re
 t
a

k
e

n
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
th

ro
u

g
h

 a
 s

e
ri
e

s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

s
h
o

p
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
d

if
fe

re
n

t 
g

ro
u

p
s
 f
o

r 
e

x
a

m
p

le
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 S

lo
u

g
h

 F
e
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
T

e
n

a
n

ts
 

a
n

d
 R

e
s
id

e
n

ts
  

Page 24



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 –

 U
s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 k

e
y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
  

1
3
 
  

S
lo

u
g
h
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

D
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 p

la
n

 i
ts

 f
in

a
n
c
e
s
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

it
s
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 s
e
c
u
re

 s
o

u
n

d
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

?
 

A
 b

a
la

n
c
e
d
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
o
u
tt
u
rn

 i
n
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
 w

a
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 b

u
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
p
re

s
s
u
re

 o
n

 f
u
tu

re
 b

u
d
g
e
ts

. 
S

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
la

te
s
 t

o
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 l
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
b
u
t 
th

e
re

 a
re

 
e

m
e

rg
in

g
 s

ig
n

s
 t
h

a
t 
a

g
re

e
d

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 
d
e
liv

e
ra

b
le

, 
n
o
r 

h
a
v
e
 s

u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
b
u
y
-i
n
 f
ro

m
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
h
o
ld

e
rs

. 
S

tr
o
n
g
e
r,

 m
o
re

 d
e
ta

ile
d

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 p

la
n

s
, 
m

o
v
in

g
 a

w
a

y
 f
ro

m
 

a
n

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 c

y
c
le

 a
re

 n
e

e
d

e
d

 t
o

 b
ri
d

g
e

 a
n

 e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 a

 b
u

d
g
e

t 
g

a
p

 o
f 
£

2
2
m

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 
th

re
e

 y
e

a
rs

. 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n
c
il 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
s
 t
o

 f
o

c
u
s
 f
u

tu
re

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e

s
 o

n
 r

is
k
 s

e
n

s
it
iv

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
e

le
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 m

a
rg

in
a
l 
c
o
s
ts

 o
f 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
. 
In

 o
u
r 

v
ie

w
, 
th

is
 i
s
 a

 g
o
o
d

 s
te

p
 f
o
rw

a
rd

, 
a

n
d

 w
ill

 a
id

 t
h

e
 c

o
u
n

c
il 

in
 b

ri
d

g
in

g
 t
h

is
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 g

a
p

. 
T

h
e

 P
P

R
G

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 w

ill
 a

ls
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h
is

 b
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n

 a
n
d
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 f
ro

n
tl
in

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 c
o
s
ts

 a
g
a

in
s
t 
c
o

m
p

a
ra

to
r 

b
e

n
c
h

m
a
rk

s
 t
o

 d
e

te
rm

in
e

 m
in

im
u

m
 a

c
c
e

p
ta

b
le

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 l
e

v
e

ls
. 
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 a

 g
o

o
d

 k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 o
f 
th

e
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 v

ia
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

n
d

 n
e
e

d
s
 t
o

 b
u

ild
 o

n
 t
h

is
 b

y
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d

in
g

 m
o
re

 a
b
o

u
t 
th

e
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

, 
c
o

s
ts

 a
n

d
 

ri
s
k
s
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 a

rr
a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 s

o
m

e
th

in
g

 t
h

a
t 
is

 b
e

in
g

 t
a

k
e

n
 f
o

rw
a

rd
 v

ia
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 G
ro

u
p

s
 (

P
D

G
) 

a
n

d
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 L

S
P

. 
 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
s
 a

re
 a

t 
th

e
 m

in
im

u
m

 l
e
v
e
l 
fe

lt
 p

ru
d
e
n
t 
b
y
 t

h
e

 s
e
c
ti
o

n
 1

5
1

 o
ff

ic
e

r.
 T

h
is

 j
u
d

g
e

m
e
n

t 
is

 u
n

d
e

rp
in

n
e

d
 b

y
 a

 r
is

k
 b

a
s
e
d

 e
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
lik

e
ly

 d
e

m
a
n

d
s
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
v
e
r 

u
n
fo

re
s
e
e
n
 e

v
e
n
ts

. 
A

 b
u
d
g
e
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

fu
tu

re
 y

e
a

rs
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

ra
w

n
 u

p
 t
o

 a
v
o

id
 d

e
p

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
g

e
n

e
ra

l 
re

s
e
rv

e
s
. 
 

T
re

a
s
u
ry

 m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
c
o
m

p
lie

s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

IP
F

A
 p

ru
d
e

n
ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 t
re

a
s
u
ry

 c
o
d
e

 a
n
d
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 b
a
la

n
c
e
 l
iq

u
id

it
y
, 
s
e
c
u
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 y

ie
ld

. 
In

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 i
n

 I
c
e

la
n
d

ic
 

in
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 l
im

it
s
 i
m

p
o
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

b
y
 t
h

e
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
te

rm
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a
s
 r

e
s
p

o
n
d
e
d
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 t
o
 a

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
y
 

le
s
s
o
n
s
 l
e
a
rn

t.
 

Page 25



 A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 –

 U
s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 k

e
y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
  

S
lo

u
g
h
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 
1
4

K
L

O
E

 1
.2

 (
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n

d
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
ie

s
) 

s
c
o
re

 
2

D
o

e
s
 t
h

e
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
 h

a
v
e

 a
 s

o
u
n

d
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
it
s
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d

 a
c
h

ie
v
e
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
ie

s
 i
n
 i
ts

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
?
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 t
o

ta
l 
e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 i
n

 c
o
m

p
a
ri

s
o
n

 t
o

 o
th

e
r 

c
o

u
n

c
ils

 i
s
 f
a
v
o
u
ra

b
le

, 
g
iv

e
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
n
te

x
t,
 a

n
d
 i
t 

h
a
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
re

c
o
g

n
it
io

n
 o

f 
e

x
c
e

lle
n

t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 i
n

 a
d

u
lt
s
 a

n
d

 g
o

o
d

 p
e

rf
o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

 c
h

ild
re

n
’s

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 
It
 i
s
 a

 'g
o
o
d
 P

la
c
e
 t
o
 L

iv
e
' a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

a
fe

ty
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 F

a
ir
. 

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 g
o
o

d
 u

n
d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 a
c
ro

s
s
 p

a
rt

s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

o
f 
it
s
 c

o
s
ts

, 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 s

y
s
te

m
a
ti
c
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 o
f 
c
o

s
ts

 d
ri
v
e
rs

. 
A

 c
o

rp
o
ra

te
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
h

a
t 
h

a
s
 

e
n

a
b

le
d

 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

to
 b

e
tt
e

r 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d

 t
h

e
 r

e
a
s
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
it
s
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n

d
 m

a
k
e

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 v
a

lu
e
 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 l
o

n
g
 t
e
rm

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 m

ix
e
d
 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 t
o
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 h
o

w
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

n
it
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n

d
 t
ra

n
s
a

c
ti
o
n

 c
o
s
ts

 c
o

m
p

a
re

 w
it
h

 o
th

e
rs

. 
A

 r
e
c
e
n
t 
s
u
rv

e
y
 o

f 
c
o
s
t 
c
e
n
tr

e
 m

a
n
a
g
e

rs
 (

c
o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 A

u
d
it
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
) 

re
v
e
a
le

d
 t
h
a
t 
2
3
 p

e
r 

c
e
n
t 
o
f 
m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 s
a
id

 t
h
e
y
 h

a
v
e

 a
 f
u

ll 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
c
o
s
t 
d

ri
v
e

rs
 w

h
ile

 7
7

 p
e

r 
c
e

n
t 
o
f 
m

a
n

a
g
e
rs

 s
a
id

 t
h
e
y
 o

n
ly

 h
a
d
 a

 p
a
rt

ia
l 

u
n

d
e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
. 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

is
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 i
ts

 u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 t
o
ta

l 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 d

is
p
o
s
a
l 
o
f 
a
ll 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
. 
 

C
o

m
p
a

ra
ti
v
e

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 o
n

 c
o
s
ts

 a
n
d

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 i
s
 r

o
u
ti
n
e
ly

 u
s
e
d

 b
y
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

to
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

it
 i
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 V

F
M

. 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 s

tr
o

n
g

 c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 t
o

 c
o

s
ts

 i
n

 
th

e
 P

o
lic

y
, 
P

ri
o

ri
ti
s
a

ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 G

ro
u
p

. 
T

a
rg

e
te

d
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
h

a
s
 l
e

d
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
in

 p
ri
o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 s

tr
e

e
t 
c
le

a
n

s
in

g
. 
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il,

 w
h

e
n

 m
a

k
in

g
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
, 
ta

k
e
s
 i
n

to
 a

c
c
o
u

n
t 
th

e
 l
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o

f 
it
s
 s

p
e

n
d

in
g

 d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

o
c
ia

l/
e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 a
s
 i
n
 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

a
s
s
e
ts

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 r
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
. 
B

u
t 
e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 n

o
t 
c
o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
. 
 

C
o

rp
o
ra

te
ly

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
s
 h

ig
h
 l
e

v
e

l 
b

e
n

c
h
m

a
rk

in
g

 o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 u

s
e

d
 t
o

 i
n

fo
rm

 b
u

d
g

e
t 
s
e

tt
in

g
/t

ri
g

g
e
r 

o
p
ti
o

n
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
ls

 f
o
r 

h
ig

h
 c

o
s
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e

r 
a

t 
a
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
b

e
n
c
h

m
a
rk

in
g

 i
n

 2
0

0
8

/0
9

 i
s
 i
n

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t.
 A

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

is
 y

e
a

r’
s
 b

u
d
g

e
t 
p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a
s
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e
d
 b

e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 o

f 
a
ll 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 i
s
 b

e
n
c
h

m
a

rk
in

g
 f
ro

n
tl
in

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o

r 
c
o
s
t 
a

g
a

in
s
t 

u
p
p

e
r,

 m
e

d
ia

n
 a

n
d

 l
o

w
e

r 
q

u
a

rt
ile

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 t
o

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 w

h
e
re

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 c

a
n

 b
e

 m
a

d
e

 a
g
a

in
s
t 

a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 l
e
v
e
ls

. 

In
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
 t
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
c
h
ie

v
e

d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 o

f 
£

7
.7

m
 a

n
d

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 i
ts

 e
ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 t
a
rg

e
t.
 I
t 
is

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 i
n
n
o
v
a
ti
v
e
 w

a
y
s
 o

f 
d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
; 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

ro
c
e
s
s
 R

e
-e

n
g
in

e
e
ri
n
g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

p
p
lie

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 
c
e

n
tr

e
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 s
u
c
h
 a

s
 f
le

x
ib

le
 q

u
e
u
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l.
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 a

t 
a

n
 a

d
v
a

n
c
e

d
 s

ta
g

e
 o

f 
d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 t
o

 c
re

a
te

 a
 j
o
in

t 
v
e
n
tu

re
 c

o
m

p
a
n
y
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 c

o
m

m
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

Page 26



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 –

 U
s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 k

e
y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
  

1
5
 
  

S
lo

u
g
h
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

K
L

O
E

 1
.3

 (
fi
n
a

n
c
ia

l 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
) 

s
c
o
re

 
2

Is
 t
h

e
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
re

p
o
rt

in
g

 t
im

e
ly

, 
re

lia
b

le
 a

n
d

 d
o

e
s
 i
t 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 
u

s
e
rs

, 
s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 a

n
d

 l
o
c
a

l 
p

e
o

p
le

?
  

A
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 t
o

 c
o

lle
c
t,

 p
re

p
a
re

 a
n

d
 p

re
s
e
n

t 
in

te
g

ra
te

d
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
a
n

d
 n

o
n
-f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
d

a
ta

 a
re

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

. 
 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
is

 c
le

a
rl
y
 a

s
s
ig

n
e

d
 a

t 
a

ll 
le

v
e

ls
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
re

c
e

iv
e

s
 m

o
n

th
ly

 r
e

p
o

rt
s
 t
h

a
t 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 i
n

te
g

ra
te

 s
e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 w

it
h

in
 a

 b
a

la
n

c
e
d

 s
c
o

re
c
a
rd

. 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
re

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

t 
th

a
t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

s
 a

re
 r

o
b
u
s
tl
y
 s

c
ru

ti
n
is

e
d
 b

y
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 i
n
 f
o

rm
a
l 
a
n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
l 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 b

u
t 

th
e
re

 i
s
 l
it
tl
e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
is

 w
it
h
in

 m
in

u
te

s
. 
M

o
re

 u
s
e

 c
a

n
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 o

f 
s
e

n
s
it
iv

it
y
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 f
o

r 
a
n

y
 p

ro
je

c
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
d
e
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 f
o
r 

d
e

m
a

n
d

 l
e

d
 e

le
m

e
n

ts
, 
a

n
d

 c
le

a
re

r 
lin

k
in

g
 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 r

is
k
 r

e
g

is
te

r 
w

o
u

ld
 s

tr
e
n

g
th

e
n

 t
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
h
o
ld

e
rs

 a
re

 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n

t 
th

a
t 
in

te
rn

a
l 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 i
s
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t,

 r
e

lia
b

le
 a

n
d

 t
im

e
ly

. 
T

h
e

y
 a

ls
o

 s
e
e

 a
 c

le
a
r 

lin
k
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t
h

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t,
 i
n

-y
e

a
r 

p
o
s
it
io

n
 a

n
d

 
th

e
 f
in

a
l 
o

u
t-

tu
rn

. 
T

h
e

y
 a

re
 l
e

s
s
 c

o
n

fi
d
e

n
t 
a
b
o
u
t 
th

e
ir
 a

b
ili

ty
 t
o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 b

e
s
p
o
k
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
re

p
o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 i
s
 s

o
m

e
th

in
g
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 n

o
w

 t
a
k
in

g
 f
o

rw
a
rd

 a
s
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 
L
G

S
S

. 

D
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

to
o

k
 s

te
p
s
 t
o

 s
tr

e
n
g

th
e

n
 g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 r

is
k
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 w

it
h

in
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
. 
It

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 a

s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 a

ll 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 
a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
g

a
in

s
t 
a

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 p
ro

to
c
o

l,
 d

ra
w

n
 u

p
 i
n
 l
ig

h
t 
o
f 
th

e
 ‘
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
’ 
re

p
o
rt

 b
y
 t
h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
. 
S

in
c
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 t
h
e
 

p
e

rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e

 a
n

d
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 r
is

k
s
 o

f 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 r

o
u

ti
n

e
ly

 c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 D
e
liv

e
ry

 G
ro

u
p
s
 (

P
D

G
).

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t
o

 s
tr

e
a
m

lin
in

g
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 i
ts

 a
c
c
o
u

n
ts

 p
ro

d
u

c
ti
o
n

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 
A

d
o
p

ti
n

g
 a

 ‘
g

a
p

 a
n

a
ly

s
is

’ 
a

p
p
ro

a
c
h

 f
o

r 
th

e
 f
ir
s
t 
ti
m

e
 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r 

h
a
s
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d

 t
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 a

n
d

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 n
o

w
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 s
tr

o
n
g

ly
. 
O

n
c
e

 a
u

d
it
e

d
, 
th

e
 a

c
c
o
u

n
ts

 a
re

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 v

ia
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 w

e
b
s
it
e
 a

n
d
 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

in
te

n
d

s
 t
o

 p
u
b

lis
h

 a
n

 a
n

n
u
a

l 
re

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
ir
s
t 
ti
m

e
 l
a
te

r 
th

is
 y

e
a
r.

 

T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
m

e
n

ts
, 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 o

r 
re

g
u
la

to
ry

 t
im

e
ta

b
le

s
, 
re

le
v
a
n
t 
a
c
c
o
u
n

ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
. 
T

h
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 w

e
re

 
a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 b

e
fo

re
 3

0
 J

u
n
e

 b
y
 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

(o
r 

c
o

m
m

it
te

e
 w

it
h

 d
e

le
g

a
te

d
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

) 
a

n
d

 p
u

b
lis

h
e
d

 b
y
 3

0
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

e
 a

u
d
it
 o

p
in

io
n
).

  

T
h
e
 d

ra
ft
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 t
h

e
 c

o
u
n

c
il 

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 f
a

ir
ly

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
p
o
s
it
io

n
. 
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n

ts
 c

o
n
ta

in
e
d
 n

o
n
-t

ri
v
ia

l 
e
rr

o
rs

, 
fr

o
m

 o
u
r 

w
o
rk

 t
o
 

d
a
te

, 
th

e
 e

rr
o
rs

 i
d
e
n

ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t
o
ta

l 
d
o
 n

o
t 
h
a
v
e
 a

 m
a
te

ri
a
l 
e
ff
e

c
t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
. 
O

u
r 

w
o

rk
 o

n
 t
h

is
 a

re
a

 i
s
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
a

n
d

 w
e

 h
a
v
e

 n
o

t 
y
e

t 
is

s
u

e
d

 o
u
r 

o
p

in
io

n
 

o
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 2

0
0
8

/0
9

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
. 

T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

s
 a

n
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
a

u
d

it
 o

f 
it
s
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 b

y
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 w
o

rk
in

g
 p

a
p
e
rs

 a
n
d

 r
e
s
p
o

n
d

in
g

 p
ro

m
p

tl
y
 t
o

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
re

q
u
e

s
ts

 f
o

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

. 
T

h
e

 t
ra

il 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t
h

e
 l
e

d
g

e
r 

a
n

d
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 c

a
n

, 
h
o

w
e

v
e
r,

 b
e

 s
im

p
lif

ie
d

. 
T

h
e

re
 a

re
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
ie

s
 t
o

 b
e

 m
a
d

e
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il'

s
 y

e
a
r-

e
n

d
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 u

s
e
 o

f 
M

o
n
th

 
1
3
, 
m

a
n
u
a
l 
a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n
ts

, 
jo

u
rn

a
ls

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 a

u
d
it
 t
ra

il 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 l
e

d
g
e

r 
a

n
d

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 
F

u
rt

h
e

r 
e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
 c

a
n

 b
e

 m
a

d
e

 b
y
 f
u
lly

 u
ti
lis

in
g
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 f
e
a
tu

re
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il'

s
 O

ra
c
le

 g
e
n

e
ra

l 
le

d
g

e
r,

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 s

c
a

n
n
e
d

 i
n

v
o

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 j
o

u
rn

a
l 
a

u
th

o
ri
s
a

ti
o

n
. 

Page 27



 A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 –

 U
s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 k

e
y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
  

S
lo

u
g
h
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 
1
6

T
h

e
m

e
 2

 -
 g

o
v

e
rn

in
g

 t
h

e
 b

u
s

in
e

s
s

 

H
o
w

 w
e
ll 

d
o
e
s
 t

h
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 g

o
v
e
rn

 i
ts

e
lf
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
 v

a
lu

e
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

b
e

tt
e

r 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
l 

p
e
o
p
le

?

T
h

e
m

e
 2

 s
c

o
re

 
2

K
e

y
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 

K
L
O

E
 2

.1
 (

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t)
 s

c
o
re

 
2

D
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
u
re

 q
u
a
lit

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

u
p

p
lie

s
, 
ta

ilo
re

d
 t
o

 l
o
c
a

l 
n

e
e

d
s
, 
to

 d
e

liv
e

r 
s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 a

n
d

 v
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y
?

  

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
P

o
lic

y
 2

0
0
8
 t
o
 2

0
1
1
 i
s
 a

lig
n
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 b

u
t 
is

 s
ti
ll 

in
 D

ra
ft
. 
It
 i
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 a

n
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 w
h

ic
h

 i
n
c
lu

d
e

s
 l
o

c
a

l 
P

Is
 b

u
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
s
e
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
. 
A

n
 a

s
s
is

ta
n

t 
d

ir
e
c
to

r 
h

a
s
 r

e
c
e
n

tl
y
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
c
ru

it
e

d
 t
o

 e
n

h
a
n

c
e

 c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 i
n
 t
h
is

 a
re

a
.

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 i
ts

 u
n

d
e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 s

u
p
p

ly
 m

a
rk

e
t.
 I
t 

is
 a

 m
e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
th

e
 T

h
a
m

e
s
 V

a
lle

y
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
F

o
ru

m
 (

T
V

P
F

),
 t
h

e
 i
n

it
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 

c
o

n
c
e
n

tr
a

te
d

 o
n

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 s
h

a
ri

n
g

. 
C

o
lla

b
o

ra
ti
v
e
 p

u
rc

h
a

s
e
 o

f 
E

n
e
rg

y
 i
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 t
h
e
 B

e
rk

s
h
ir
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
. 
In

te
rn

a
lly

 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

p
la

n
s
 t
o

 a
n

a
ly

s
e
 

s
p

e
n

d
 a

n
d

 i
d
e

n
ti
fy

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 t
o

 a
g

g
re

g
a

te
 b

y
 s

e
tt

in
g

 u
p

 c
e
n

tr
a

l 
c
o
n

tr
a
c
ts

 f
o

r 
c
o
m

m
o

n
ly

 u
s
e
d

 i
te

m
s
 i
n
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
. 
T

h
e
 i
P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 h
a

s
 e

n
a

b
le

d
 P

ro
p

e
rt

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n

t 
to

 w
o

rk
 t
o

g
e

th
e
r 

a
n
d

 c
re

a
te

 a
n

 a
p

p
ro

v
e
d

 s
u
p

p
lie

r 
lis

t 
a

n
d

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

. 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 i
P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 h

e
lp

e
d
 i
d
e
n

ti
fy

 a
ll 

s
u
p
p
lie

rs
 i
n
v
o
ic

in
g
 o

v
e
r 

1
0
0
 i
n
v
o
ic

e
s
 p

e
r 

m
o
n
th

. 
iP

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

w
ill

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

in
 

im
p
le

m
e
n

ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 N

o
 P

u
rc

h
a

s
e
 O

rd
e
r 

N
o
 P

a
y
 m

e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y
 a

n
d
 t
o
 m

o
v
e
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 c

e
n
tr

a
lis

e
d
 i
n

v
o
ic

in
g
. 
 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
o
rk

s
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
S

M
E

, 
B

M
E

 s
u
p
p
lie

rs
 a

n
d
 V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 S

e
c
to

r 
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 m

a
d
e
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 
te

n
d
e
ri
n
g
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 e

g
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 b

u
y
e
r 

e
v
e
n
ts

. 
It
 i
s
 

p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ri
n
g
 a

 v
a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

s
e
c
u
ri
n
g
 g

o
o
d
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
o

rp
o
ra

te
s
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
 i
n
to

 p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

e
g
 A

rt
s
 @

 C
e
n
tr

e
 b

u
t 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 

s
y
s
te

m
a

ti
c
a

lly
 e

v
a

lu
a

te
. 
T

h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

h
a
s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 t
h
e

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

 t
o

 c
o
m

m
e
n

c
e

 j
o

in
t 
p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 t
w

o
 o

th
e

r 
lo

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d

 s
e

le
c
t 
a

 p
ri
v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r 
p
a
rt

n
e
r 

to
 c

re
a

te
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
S

h
a
re

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 J

o
in

t 
V

e
n
tu

re
. 
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 s

tr
e

n
g

th
e
n

e
d

 i
ts

 o
p

ti
o
n
s
 a

p
p
ra

is
a

l 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
, 
m

a
jo

r 
p

ro
je

c
ts

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

 t
h

e
 o

p
ti
o

n
s
 a

p
p

ra
is

a
l 
to

 b
e

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 b

y
 t
h

e
 C

o
n

tr
a
c
ts

 R
e

v
ie

w
 B

o
a

rd
. 
A

ll 
m

a
jo

r 
p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n

t 
p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
re

 t
o

 b
e

 m
a

n
a
g

e
d

 a
c
c
o

rd
in

g
 t
o

 a
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
d

 p
ro

je
c
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
m

e
th

o
d
, 
th

is
 w

a
s
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
. 
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

p
la

n
s
 t
o

 s
u
b

je
c
t 
it
s
e

lf
 t
o

 
e
x
te

rn
a
l 
c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 e

g
 I
D

e
A

 h
e
a
lt
h
 c

h
e
c
k
s
 i
n
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
. 
 

Page 28



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 –

 U
s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 k

e
y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
  

1
7
 
  

S
lo

u
g
h
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

K
L
O

E
 2

.2
 (

d
a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 u

s
e
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
) 

s
c
o
re

 
2

D
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 
a
n
d
 r

e
lia

b
le

 d
a
ta

 a
n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 d
e
c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
in

g
 a

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

?
  

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

 a
 D

a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 D

a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 P

ro
to

c
o

l 
in

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0
0

9
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 i
t 
s
e
c
u

re
s
 g

o
o

d
 q

u
a

lit
y
 d

a
ta

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y
 b

u
t 
th

e
s
e
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 

h
a
v
e
 y

e
t 
to

 m
a
k
e
 a

 f
u
ll 

im
p
a

c
t.
 T

h
e
 m

o
s
t 
re

c
e
n
t 
A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
D

Q
 i
n

 2
0

0
8

 f
o

u
n

d
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 m

e
t 

m
in

im
u

m
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n
d

 
s
p
o
t 
c
h
e
c
k
s
 o

f 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 r

e
v
e
a
le

d
 a

ll 
w

e
re

 f
a
ir
ly

 s
ta

te
d
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 i
ts

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 m
a

n
a

g
e

 d
a

ta
 o

n
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 w

it
h

 c
o

n
tr

o
lle

d
 a

n
d

 s
e

c
u

re
 a

c
c
e
s
s
. 
It

 h
a

s
 s

e
t 
o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 i
n

 i
ts

 D
Q

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

: 
p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 f
o
r 

e
x
tr

a
c
ti
n
g

 p
e

rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 b

e
 w

ri
tt

e
n

 a
n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

 f
o

r 
a

ll 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 b

y
 2

0
1

0
; 
a

n
d

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 t
o

 b
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 r
is

k
 r

e
g

is
te

rs
 

a
n
d
 c

o
v
e
re

d
 b

y
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 p

la
n
s
 b

y
 J

u
ly

 2
0

0
9

. 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 p

re
s
e
n

tl
y
 n

o
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
it
y
 p

la
n

 (
lif

e
 a

n
d
 l
im

b
 p

la
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
) 

b
u

t 
p

ro
g
re

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 m

a
d

e
 i
n
 e

n
s
u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
ili

e
n
c
e

 o
f 
th

e
 I
T

 i
n

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
s
 f
o

r 
a

 2
n

d
 c

o
m

p
u

te
r 

ro
o
m

’ 
a

re
 i
n

 t
ra

in
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

u
s
e
s
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 t
o

 k
e

e
p

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
u

n
d

e
rp

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 u
n

d
e

r 
re

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 c
a
n

 d
e

m
o
n

s
tr

a
te

 i
t 
is

 t
a
k
in

g
 a

p
p

ro
p
ri
a

te
 a

c
ti
o

n
 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
T

h
e
re

 
s
o
m

e
 g

o
o
d
 e

x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
d
a
ta

 u
s
e

 e
g

 P
la

n
n

in
g
. 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n
c
il 

is
 u

s
in

g
 a

n
 i
n
te

ri
m

 p
e

rf
o
rm

a
n

c
e

 s
y
s
te

m
 w

h
ic

h
 g

a
th

e
rs

 d
a
ta

 f
ro

m
 a

 
n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
d

if
fe

re
n

t 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 w

h
ile

 i
t 
e

x
p

lo
re

s
 o

p
ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h

 s
h
a

re
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
. 

K
L

O
E

 2
.3

 (
g

o
o

d
 g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

) 
s
c
o
re

 
2

D
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
m

o
te

 a
n
d
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 t
h

e
 p

ri
n

c
ip

le
s
 a

n
d

 v
a

lu
e

s
 o

f 
g
o

o
d

 g
o

v
e
rn

a
n
c
e

?
  

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 c

le
a
r 

a
b
o
u
t 
e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
, 
n
o
n
-e

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 s

c
ru

ti
n
y
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 r

o
le

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 o

f 
e
a
c
h

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 a

 c
o

rp
o
ra

te
 

g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 p
o

lic
y
 s

ta
te

m
e
n

t 
w

h
ic

h
 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

re
c
o

g
n

is
e
s
 n

e
e

d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 i
n
 l
ig

h
t 
o
f 
C

IP
F

A
s
 g

o
o
d
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

. 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 p
ro

d
u

c
ti
v
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 r

e
la

ti
o
n

s
h

ip
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

 a
n

d
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
s
e

 a
re

 u
n

d
e

rp
in

n
e

d
 b

y
 a

n
 o

ff
ic

e
r/

 m
e
m

b
e

r 
c
o

d
e

 o
f 

c
o

n
d
u
c
t.
 T

h
is

 i
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
a
 

w
id

e
r 

c
o
m

p
re

h
e

n
s
iv

e
 f
ra

m
e

w
o
rk

 o
f 
p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d

 g
u

id
a
n

c
e

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 f
o

r 
g

if
ts

 a
n

d
 h

o
s
p

it
a

lit
y
, 
d

e
c
la

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
in

te
re

s
ts

, 
w

h
is

tl
e

-b
lo

w
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

. 
T

h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 f
u

ll 
ra

n
g

e
 o

f 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
o

p
p
o

rt
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 f
o
r 

M
e

m
b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 s

e
n
io

r 
o
ff
ic

e
rs

 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h

 t
h

e
 t
a

k
e
-u

p
 o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g

 b
y
 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

 c
a

n
 s

o
m

e
ti
m

e
s
 b

e
 l
o

w
. 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
e
a

c
h

e
d

 w
it
h

 G
ro

u
p

 L
e

a
d

e
rs

 r
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 e

n
fo

rc
in

g
 c

o
m

p
u

ls
o

ry
 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 L
e

a
d
e

rs
 a

re
 a

c
ti
v
e
ly

 
e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

t 
a
ll 

tr
a
in

in
g
. 
A

 M
e
m

b
e
r 

le
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 a

b
o
u
t 
to

 b
e
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
. 

M
o
re

 c
a
n
 b

e
 d

o
n
e
 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
is

 g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

. 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 r
e

p
o
rt

e
d

 t
h

e
y
 w

e
re

 u
n
a

w
a

re
 o

f 
h

o
w

 t
o

 l
o

c
a

te
 t
h

e
 r

e
g
is

te
rs

 o
f 
g

if
ts

, 
h

o
s
p

it
a

lit
y
 a

n
d

 i
n

te
re

s
ts

 a
n
d

 
w

e
re

 u
n
fa

m
ili

a
r 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
te

r 
fr

a
u
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
rr

u
p
ti
o
n
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
. 
It
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 u

n
c
le

a
r 

h
o
w

 t
h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
, 
w

h
ils

t 
fo

rm
a
lly

 r
e
s
p
o

n
s
ib

le
 f
o

r 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 
w

it
h

 c
o
d

e
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
, 
c
a

n
 o

r 
d

o
e
s
 s

o
. 
A

lo
n

g
s
id

e
 t
h

is
, 

p
u

b
lis

h
in

g
 a

n
y
 d

e
c
la

re
d

 i
n

te
re

s
ts

 a
n
d
 g

if
ts

/ 
h
o
s
p
it
a
lit

y
 o

n
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n

c
il’

s
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
d
e

ta
ils

 p
a

g
e
s
 w

o
u

ld
 

fo
s
te

r 
o
p

e
n

n
e
s
s
 a

n
d

 t
ra

n
s
p
a

re
n
c
y
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 c

o
m

p
lie

s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 o

f 
it
 b

y
 t

h
e

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 B

o
a

rd
. 
T

h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

g
o
e
s
 b

e
y
o
n
d
 w

h
a
t 
is

 r
e
q
u

ir
e
d

 
a

n
d

 a
p
p

o
in

ts
 f
o

u
r 

in
d

e
p

e
n
d
e

n
t 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

 t
o

 h
e

lp
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

 i
n
d

e
p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e
. 
T

h
e
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 n

e
e
d
s
 t
o
 d

o
 m

o
re

 t
o
 a

c
ti
v
e
ly

 p
ro

m
o
te

 s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 I
t 

h
a

s
 n

o
t 
y
e

t 
c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 n

o
w

 i
t 
w

ill
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

f 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
rs

 w
it
h

in
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
, 
h

a
s
 n

o
 c

le
a
r 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 t
o

 m
o
n

it
o

r 
c
o

m
p

lia
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 
c
o
d
e
s
 a

n
d
 

p
o

lic
ie

s
, 
a

n
d

 d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 
a

p
p
e

a
r 

to
 h

a
v
e

 s
o

u
g

h
t 

fe
e

d
b

a
c
k
 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 t
h

e
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
c
o
m

p
la

in
t 
p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 
 

Page 29



 A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 –

 U
s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 k

e
y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
  

S
lo

u
g
h
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 
1
8

K
L

O
E

 2
.4

 (
ri
s
k
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l)
 s

c
o
re

 
2

D
o

e
s
 t
h

e
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
 m

a
n

a
g

e
 i
ts

 r
is

k
s
 a

n
d

 m
a

in
ta

in
 a

 s
o

u
n

d
 s

y
s
te

m
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l?

  

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 r

is
k
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 h
a

s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 p

a
s
t 
1

8
 m

o
n

th
s
. 
R

is
k
s
 a

re
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

t 
c
o

rp
o
ra

te
 a

n
d

 d
e

p
a
rt

m
e

n
ta

l 
le

v
e

l 
a

n
d

 
a

s
s
e
s
s
e

d
 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
lik

e
lih

o
o

d
 a

n
d

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 i
m

p
a

c
t.

 T
ra

in
in

g
 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 f
o

r 
o

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
n
d

 m
e
m

b
e

rs
 a

n
d

 r
is

k
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
e
s
 a

re
 d

e
liv

e
ri

n
g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
a
c
k
in

g
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 r

is
k
s
 o

f 
c
a

p
a
c
it
y
/ 
s
k
ill

s
, 
p
ro

je
c
t 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
a

n
d

 c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 d

a
ta

 q
u

a
lit

y
. 

C
M

T
, 
C

a
b

in
e
t 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 r

e
p
o

rt
s
 o

n
 r

is
k
 m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n
t,
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

c
ti
o
n

 t
a
k
e
n
 a

n
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

m
ile

s
to

n
e

s
. 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 
re

p
o
rt

in
g

 o
f 
ri
s
k
 i
s
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

a
te

 t
o

 t
h

is
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

ri
s
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t,
 e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 t
h

a
t 
a

 c
o

rp
o
ra

te
 f
o

c
u

s
 i
s
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

 f
o

r 
h

ig
h
e

s
t 
ri

s
k
s
. 

T
o
 d

a
te

, 
th

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
ri
s
k
 m

a
n
a
g
e

m
e
n
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 d

ri
v
e

n
 b

y
 t
h

e
 c

e
n

tr
a

l 
ri
s
k
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
te

a
m

 w
h
ic

h
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 p

e
ri
o
d
ic

a
lly

 t
o
 C

M
T

. 
T

h
e

 C
o
u
n

c
il 

re
c
o
g

n
is

e
s
 

th
a
t 
ri
s
k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
n
o
w

 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
to

 d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 h
o
p

e
s
 t
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

is
 d

u
ri
n

g
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
s
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

a
n
d
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
th

e
 m

a
in

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 r
is

k
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 t
h

e
n

 m
o

n
it
o

re
d

 b
y
 

th
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 
P

D
G

. 
A

t 
a
 w

id
e
r 

le
v
e
l,
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

h
a

s
 c

o
n

d
u
c
te

d
 a

 r
is

k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

g
a

in
s
t 
L

A
A

 t
a

rg
e

ts
, 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
s
e

 r
is

k
s
 a

re
 i
n

te
g
ra

te
d

 i
n
to

 d
e
liv

e
ry

 p
la

n
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

o
f 
th

e
s
e
 i
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 a

p
p

ro
p
ri
a
te

 a
n

ti
-f

ra
u
d

 a
n

d
 c

o
rr

u
p

ti
o
n

 p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e

d
u
re

s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

e
 r

e
c
o
v
e

ry
 o

f 
lo

s
s
e
s
 a

n
d

 s
a
n
c
ti
o
n
s
. 
T

h
is

 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 i
s
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 b

o
th

 I
n
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 a

n
d
 a

 s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 

te
a

m
 w

h
o

 r
e

p
o

rt
 r

e
g

u
la

rl
y
 t
o

 t
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
. 
In

 M
a
y
 2

0
0
9
 A

n
 

e
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
 a

n
ti
fr

a
u

d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

a
c
k
a

g
e

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e

d
 t
o

 f
u

rt
h
e

r 
ra

is
e

 a
n

ti
fr

a
u
d

 a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
. 
T

h
e

 f
o

rm
a

ti
o
n

 o
f 
a

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 f
ra

u
d
 u

n
it
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

t 
A

u
d
it
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 b

u
t 
is

 n
o
t 
y
e
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
. 
It
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 c

le
a
r 

h
o
w

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

in
te

n
d

e
d

 t
o

 m
o

n
it
o
r 

th
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
it
s
 w

id
e

r 
c
o
u

n
te

r 
fr

a
u

d
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
. 
T

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

h
a

s
 s

in
c
e

, 
in

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9

, 
b

e
e
n

 p
re

s
e
n

te
d

 w
it
h

 a
 v

e
h

ic
le

 t
o

 m
o

n
it
o

r 
th

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
th

is
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
. 
A

t 
J
u
ly

 2
0
0
9
, 
v
e
ry

 f
e
w

 N
F

I 
d

a
ta

 m
a

tc
h

e
s
 h

a
d

 b
e

e
n

 r
e

c
o

rd
e

d
 

a
s
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n

c
il.

  

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 a

 s
o
u

n
d

 s
y
s
te

m
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 
c
o
n

tr
o

l 
th

a
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
s
 a

n
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
, 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
, 
P

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 G

u
id

a
n
c
e
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

. 
T

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 i
s
 b

a
la

n
c
e
d

 i
n

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 h

a
s
 a

n
 i
n
d

e
p
e
n

d
e

n
t 
c
h

a
ir
 w

it
h

 g
o

o
d

 k
n

o
w

le
d
g

e
 o

f 
th

e
 f
u

n
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 r
o
le

 o
f 
a
n
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

a
n
d
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
c
o
n
tr

o
l 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

. 
T

h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
is

 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 f
o
c
u
s
 t
h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

o
n

 n
e

c
e

s
s
a
ry

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t
o

 i
t’
s
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 t
h

is
 r

e
s
u

lt
e
d

 
in

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

ts
 i
n
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
. 

Page 30



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 –

 U
s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 k

e
y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
  

1
9
 
  

S
lo

u
g
h
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

T
h

e
m

e
 3

 -
 m

a
n

a
g

in
g

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 

H
o
w

 w
e
ll 

d
o
e
s
 t

h
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 i
ts

 n
a
tu

ra
l 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
, 

p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
s
s
e
ts

, 
a
n
d
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
o
 m

e
e
t 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 f

u
tu

re
 n

e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

v
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
?

T
h

e
m

e
 3

 s
c
o

re
  

2

K
e

y
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 

K
L

O
E

 3
.1

 (
n

a
tu

ra
l 
re

s
o
u

rc
e
s
) 

s
c
o

re
 

2

Is
 t
h

e
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
 m

a
k
in

g
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 
n

a
tu

ra
l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
?

  

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

u
n

d
e
rs

ta
n

d
s
 t
h

e
 m

a
in

 i
n

fl
u
e

n
c
e

s
 b

e
h

in
d
 i
ts

 u
s
e

 o
f 
n

a
tu

ra
l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d

 i
s
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t
o

 r
e

d
u
c
in

g
 i
ts

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
b
u
t 
it
 i
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e

a
rl
y
 

s
ta

g
e
s
 o

f 
a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t
h

is
. 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 2
0

0
8

/0
9

 w
a
s
 s

lo
w

 b
u

t 
h

a
s
 a

c
c
e

le
ra

te
d
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 l
a
s
t 
1
2
 m

o
n
th

s
. 
It
 n

e
e
d
s
 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n

d
 m

o
re

 a
b

o
u

t 
it
s
 u

s
e
 o

f 
n

a
tu

ra
l 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 
 

E
a

s
y
 w

in
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 s

o
u
g
h

t 
in

 m
a

n
a

g
in

g
 t
h

e
 n

a
tu

ra
l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 f
o

r 
it
s
 o

w
n

 b
u

ild
in

g
s
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
e
ts

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 i
n

 e
n
e
rg

y
 u

s
e
. 
A

 c
a
rb

o
n

 m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
b

o
a

rd
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
c
a

rb
o

n
 r

e
d
u

c
ti
o

n
 t
a

rg
e

ts
 a

re
 m

e
t.

 T
h

e
re

 a
re

 s
tr

o
n
g

 l
in

k
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

is
 b

o
a
rd

 t
o

 t
h

e
 L

S
P

 a
n

d
 i
ts

 c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 g

ro
u
p
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 h
o
w

 i
t 
fi
ts

 
w

it
h

 i
ts

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
. 
E

x
te

rn
a

l 
a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 C

a
rb

o
n
 T

ru
s
t 
a
n
d
 E

n
e
rg

y
 S

a
v
in

g
s
 B

o
a
rd

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
e

d
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 i
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 a
 c

lim
a

te
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 
T

h
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 a

s
 a

t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
. 
 

C
le

a
n

 A
ir
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e

s
 t
o

 b
e

 a
n

 i
s
s
u

e
 f
o

r 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il.

 I
t 
is

 m
a

n
a

g
in

g
 f
o

u
r 

a
ir
 q

u
a

lit
y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

re
a
s
, 
b

u
t 
th

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

e
ff

e
c
t 
o

f 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 g

iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n

 o
f 
th

e
 t
o
w

n
 (

M
4
0
, 
M

4
, 
M

2
5
 a

n
d
 H

e
a
th

ro
w

).
  

S
ta

ff
 g

re
e

n
 c

h
a

m
p

io
n

s
 h

a
v
e

 j
u

s
t 
b

e
e

n
 r

e
in

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
la

p
s
in

g
 s

in
c
e

 2
0

0
5

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
ir
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
is

 n
o

t 
y
e

t 
c
le

a
r.

 A
 m

o
re

 c
o
-o

rd
in

a
te

d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h

 n
e
e

d
s
 t
o

 b
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
 

to
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
d
e

m
a
n

d
 f
o

r 
n

a
tu

ra
l 
re

s
o
u

rc
e
s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
a

rg
e

ts
 a

n
d

 s
y
s
te

m
 t
o

 m
o

n
it
o

r 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
th

e
m

. 
 

O
v
e
ra

ll 
s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rd

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

. 
D

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 t
o

p
ic

 a
t 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
, 
le

is
u
re

 a
n
d
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
p
a
n
e
l 
w

e
re

 o
b
s
e

rv
e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 u
n

fo
c
u

s
s
e
d

 a
n

d
 

d
id

 n
o

t 
le

a
d

 t
o

 c
le

a
r 

d
e

m
o
n

s
tr

a
b

le
 a

c
ti
o
n

 o
r 

a
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o
n

 t
h

a
t 

w
a

s
 f
u

lly
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 o

r 
n

e
c
e

s
s
a
ri
ly

 o
f 
a
 p

o
lic

y
 m

a
tt
e
r.

 T
h
e
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
fo

c
u

s
 o

n
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

 m
e

a
n
s
 

th
e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

is
 m

is
s
in

g
 a

n
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t
o
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

 p
o
lic

y
 i
n
 a

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 w

a
y
 t
h

a
t 
c
a

n
 i
n

fo
rm

 h
o
w

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

re
s
p
o

n
d
s
 t
o

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
is

s
u
e
s
 b

u
t 
th

e
 n

e
w

 c
a
rb

o
n
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
b
o
a
rd

 i
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 t
h
e
 M

e
m

b
e
r 

S
u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
 t
o
 l
e
a
d
 s

c
ru

ti
n
y
 o

f 
th

is
 a

re
a
. 

A
 m

o
re

 c
o
-o

rd
in

a
te

d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
h
a
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
s
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o

ri
n

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e
s
 w

ill
 h

e
lp

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 s

c
ru

ti
n
y
 f
u

n
c
ti
o

n
 t
o

 f
o

c
u
s
 m

o
re

 c
le

a
rl
y
 o

n
 w

h
a

t 
is

 b
e

in
g

 d
o

n
e

 
to

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il'

s
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

a
im

 t
o

 b
e

 c
a
rb

o
n

 n
e
u

tr
a

l 
a

n
d

 t
e

s
t 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 t
h
is

 g
o
a
l.
 I
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 b

e
tt
e
r 

p
la

c
e

d
 t
o

 c
o
m

m
e

n
t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 b

e
in

g
 

p
ro

m
o

te
d

 a
n
d

 l
in

k
 t
h

is
 t
o

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 
th

e
 c

a
rb

o
n

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
b

o
a
rd

 a
n

d
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 C

h
a

m
p

io
n

. 
 

Page 31



 A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 –

 U
s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 k

e
y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
  

S
lo

u
g
h
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 
2
0

K
L
O

E
 3

.2
 (

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 a
s
s
e
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t)
 s

c
o
re

 
3

D
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 i
ts

 a
s
s
e
ts

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 t
o
 h

e
lp

 d
e

liv
e
r 

it
s
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 n

e
e

d
s
?

  

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 a

n
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
-w

id
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 m
a

n
a

g
in

g
 a

s
s
e
ts

 a
s
 a

 c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
. 
It
 i
s
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 a

n
 a

w
a

rd
 w

in
n

in
g

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a

ti
o
n

 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 t
h
a
t 
is

 d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 V

F
M

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

. 
T

h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
 a

s
s
e

t 
m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 
p

la
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 c

le
a
r 

fo
rw

a
rd

 l
o

o
k
in

g
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 g

o
a

ls
 f
o

r 
it
s
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 a

s
s
e
ts

 t
h
a
t 
s
h
o
w

 h
o
w

 
th

e
 c

o
u
n

c
il’

s
 l
a

n
d

 a
n
d

 b
u

ild
in

g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

s
e

d
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e
lo

p
e

d
 t
o

 h
e

lp
 d

e
liv

e
r 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
, 
n
o
w

 a
n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu

re
. 
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

h
a

s
 a

c
q

u
ir
e

d
 a

 n
e
w

 I
P

F
 p

ro
p
e

rt
y
 

d
a

ta
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
s
y
s
te

m
. 
IP

F
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
s
u

rv
e

y
s
 o

f 
a

ll 
p

ro
p
e

rt
y
 a

s
s
e

ts
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 d
a

ta
 h

e
ld

 o
n

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 s
y
s
te

m
 i
s
 a

c
c
u
ra

te
. 
T

h
e

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 h
e

ld
 o

n
 t
h

is
 

s
y
s
te

m
 i
s
 u

s
e
d

 t
o
 u

p
d
a
te

 P
e

rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n
 t
u

rn
 a

re
 u

s
e
d

 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 r

e
v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 
 

T
h

e
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 g
iv

e
s
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 t
o

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
c
a

p
it
a

l 
p

ro
je

c
ts

 b
a

s
e
d
 o

n
 a

 f
o
rm

a
l,
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
l 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 
A

ll 
c
a
p
it
a

l 
b

id
s
 a

re
 s

e
lf
-a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
c
ri
te

ri
a
 

a
n

d
 b

id
s
 a

re
 s

c
o

re
d

 a
g

a
in

s
t 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 a
n

d
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
s
e
d

. 
T

h
e

 A
s
s
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
G

ro
u
p
 l
e
a
d
s
 t
h
is

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
, 
a
n
d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
re

 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d

 i
n

 p
ro

v
id

in
g

 a
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

. 
T

h
e

 
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
s
 l
in

k
e
d
 t
o

 c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 M

T
F

S
. 
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 a

c
ti
v
e

ly
 u

s
in

g
 i
ts

 a
s
s
e

ts
 t
o

 i
n

v
e

s
t 
in

 i
ts

 p
ri

o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
 o

f 
re

g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

. 
T

h
e
 H

e
a
rt

 o
f 
S

lo
u
g
h
 p

ro
je

c
t 
m

a
s
te

r 
p
la

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
in

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 t
o

 t
h

e
 a

re
a
. 
O

v
e

ra
ll 

s
h

o
rt

fa
lls

 f
o

r 
th

e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 a

re
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 s
m

a
ll 

fo
r 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

h
a

s
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
re

c
e

ip
ts

 t
h
a

t 
h

a
v
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
d

 a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 t
h
e
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
is

 s
e
c
u
ri
n
g

 u
p
 t
o
 £

4
0
0
m

 w
o
rt

h
 o

f 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t.
 T

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n
t 
in

 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

, 
e
ig

h
t 
o
f 
fo

rt
y
 s

ix
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
e
b

u
ilt

 o
r 

re
p

la
c
e
d

 s
in

c
e

 2
0

0
5

. 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

w
o

rk
s
 i
n

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
a
s
s
e
ts

 
fo

r 
th

e
 b

e
s
t 
b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
, 
a

n
d

 i
s
 e

n
g

a
g
e

d
 i
n

 a
 N

e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o

d
s
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
, 
c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 p

ilo
te

d
 i
n

 t
w

o
 l
o
c
a
l 

a
re

a
s
. 
A

 d
ra

ft
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

ra
ft
e
d
. 

Page 32



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
 –

 A
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n

2
1
 
  

S
lo

u
g
h
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 –

 A
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 

P
a
g

e
n

o
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
1

 =
 L

o
w

 
2

 =
 M

e
d

 
3

 =
 H

ig
h

 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
A

g
re

e
d

 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 

D
a

te
 

7
R

1
 

U
s
e

 t
h

e
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 r

e
p
o
rt

 'W
o
rl

d
 c

la
s
s
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t' 
to

 s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
 m

e
d
iu

m
 t
o
 

lo
n

g
-t

e
rm

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

la
n

n
in

g
. 
T

h
is

 
in

c
lu

d
e
s
: 

g
re

a
te

r 
m

o
d
e
lli

n
g
 o

f 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 

s
c
e

n
a
ri
o
s
 a

n
d

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
; 

in
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 r

is
k
 m

a
n
a
g
e

m
e
n
t;
 

d
e

liv
e

ri
n
g

 a
 c

le
a

r 
'f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
ro

a
d

 m
a

p
' 

e
x
p

la
in

in
g

 w
h
e

re
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
, 

w
h

e
re

 i
t 
w

a
n

ts
 t
o

 g
o

 a
n

d
 w

h
a

t 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 n

e
e

d
e
d

 (
o
r 

c
a

n
 b

e
 

re
d

ir
e
c
te

d
) 

to
 g

e
t 
th

e
re

 

3
J
u

lie
 E

v
a

n
s
 

Y
e
s
 

T
h

e
 r

e
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 S

e
n

io
r 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a

m
 h

a
s
 r

e
s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 a
n

 e
n
h

a
n
c
e

d
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 

fi
n

a
n

c
e

 f
u

n
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 s
tr

o
n
g

e
r 

g
o

v
e
rn

a
n
c
e

 a
n
d

 
im

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

c
o

u
n
c
il 

d
ir
e

c
ti
o
n

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 o

rg
a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
a
l 
a

n
d

 b
e

h
a

v
io

u
ra

l 
c
h

a
n

g
e
s
. 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 b
u

d
g
e

t 
s
e

tt
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 f
u

ll 
th

re
e

 y
e

a
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 m

e
d

iu
m

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
p

la
n

. 
 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

e
n

h
a
n

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 b
u

ild
 o

n
 t
h

is
 y

e
a

r'
s
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 w

ill
 t
a

k
e

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

e
 c

le
a

r 
'F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
R

o
a

d
 M

a
p

' i
s
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 i
n

 t
h

e
 l
o

n
g

 
te

rm
.

M
a

rc
h

2
0

1
0

7
R

2
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
 P

P
R

G
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

p
e

ra
te

s
 

to
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

. 
M

o
v
e
 

a
w

a
y
 f
ro

m
 a

n
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 e

x
e

rc
is

e
 t
o

 
lo

n
g

e
r 

te
rm

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
a

ls
 t
h

a
t 
c
a

n
 

p
ro

p
e
rl
y
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

 'i
n
v
e
s
t 
to

 s
a
v
e
' 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 o

r 
m

o
re

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 r
e

a
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

s
. 

3
J
u

lie
 E

v
a

n
s
/ 

A
n
n
a
l 
N

a
y
y
a
r 

Y
e
s
 

A
s
 a

b
o
v
e

M
a

rc
h

2
0

1
0

Page 33



 A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
 –

 A
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n

S
lo

u
g
h
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 
2
2

P
a
g

e
n

o
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
1

 =
 L

o
w

 
2

 =
 M

e
d

 
3

 =
 H

ig
h

 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
A

g
re

e
d

 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 

D
a

te
 

7
R

3
 

D
e

m
o
n

s
tr

a
te

 V
F

M
 m

o
re

 c
le

a
rl
y
 v

ia
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
b

e
n
c
h

m
a
rk

in
g

 a
n

d
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 
o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

n
it
 a

n
d

 t
ra

n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n

d
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
ro

je
c
ts

. 

3
R

o
g
e

r 
P

a
rk

in
/ 

K
e

v
in

 G
o

rd
o

n
 

Y
e
s
 

P
ro

je
c
t 
E

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 w
ill

 u
s
e
 P

ri
n
c
e
 2

 
P

ri
n

c
ip

le
s
 a

n
d

 M
e

th
o

d
o

lo
g
ie

s
  

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
b

re
a

d
th

 o
f 
b

e
n

c
h

m
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 
V

F
M

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

re
a
s
, 
e

a
c
h

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 t
o

 c
o

n
ta

in
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
tw

o
 V

F
M

 a
n

d
 b

e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g

 c
o

m
p

a
ri
s
o

n
s
. 

M
a

rc
h

2
0

1
0

8
R

4
 

T
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 t
o

 b
e

 c
le

a
r 

h
o

w
 i
t 
c
a
n

, 
a

n
d

 d
o

e
s
, 
m

o
n
it
o

r 
c
o

m
p

lia
n
c
e

 
w

it
h

 r
e

le
v
a
n

t 
c
o

d
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s
 a

n
d
 

h
o
w

 i
t 
d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

s
 t
h
e
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
it
s
 

w
o
rk

. 
In

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r,
 i
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

h
o
w

 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o

r 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 a
n
d
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 

c
o

u
n
te

r 
fr

a
u
d
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
. 

2
J
u

lie
 E

v
a

n
s
/ 

S
u
d
h
i 
P

a
th

a
k
/ 

K
e

v
in

 G
o

rd
o

n
 

Y
e
s
 

 A
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 F

ra
u
d

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

g
re

e
d

 
a

n
d

 a
 f
ra

u
d

 p
la

n
 w

it
h

 d
is

c
re

te
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 

re
s
o

u
rc

in
g

 i
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 m
o

n
it
o

re
d

 
q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 b

y
 t
h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

O
th

e
r 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

: 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
T

ra
in

in
g

, 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
c
o
d
e

s
 o

f 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
. 
 

M
a

rc
h

2
0

1
0

8
R

5
 

T
h

e
 S

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 t
o

 b
e

 
c
le

a
r 

h
o
w

 i
t 
c
a

n
, 
a

n
d

 d
o
e

s
, 
m

o
n

it
o

r 
c
o

m
p

lia
n
c
e

 w
it
h

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 
c
o

d
e
s
 a

n
d

 
p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 a

n
d

 d
e

m
o
n

s
tr

a
te

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 
it
s
 w

o
rk

. 
It
 n

e
e
d
s
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 

o
f 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
rs

 w
it
h

in
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

n
d

 d
o
 

m
o
re

 t
o
 a

c
ti
v
e
ly

 p
ro

m
o
te

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 

2
J
u

lie
 E

v
a

n
s
/ 

S
te

v
e
n
 Q

u
a
y
le

 
Y

e
s
 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 a
c
ti
o
n

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

: 
M

e
m

b
e
r 

T
ra

in
in

g
, 
re

v
ie

w
 

o
f 
c
u

rr
e

n
t 
c
o

d
e

s
 o

f 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s
  

M
a

rc
h

2
0

1
0

Page 34



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
 –

 A
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n

2
3
 
  

S
lo

u
g
h
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

P
a
g

e
n

o
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
1

 =
 L

o
w

 
2

 =
 M

e
d

 
3

 =
 H

ig
h

 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
A

g
re

e
d

 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 

D
a

te
 

8
R

6
 

F
o

c
u
s
 o

n
 f
u

lly
 e

m
b

e
d

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
e

s
s
in

g
 

th
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

f 
n

e
w

 c
o

rp
o
ra

te
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r:
 

ri
s
k
 m

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n

t 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n

t 

g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 i
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

n
d

  

d
a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y
.

3
R

o
g
e

r 
P

a
rk

in
/ 

J
o
 H

e
a
d
/ 

S
u
d
h
i 
P

a
th

a
k
/ 

K
e

v
in

 G
o

rd
o

n
 

Y
e
s
 

A
n

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

g
re

e
d

 f
o

r 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

e
m

b
e

d
d

in
g

 r
is

k
 m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t.

 

T
h

is
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

in
g

 a
n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
 R

is
k
 

C
h

a
m

p
io

n
s
 i
n
 e

a
c
h

 d
e

p
a
rt

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 f
o

r 
o

w
n
e

rs
h

ip
 

o
f 
ri
s
k
 t
o
 b

e
 t
a
k
e
n
 b

y
 n

a
m

e
d
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 

O
th

e
r 

a
re

a
s
 a

re
 a

ls
o

 b
e

in
g

 a
d

d
re

s
s
e
d

, 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

o
f 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

ts
 t
o

 b
e

 m
o

n
it
o

re
d

 a
n
d

 r
e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 
C

M
T

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

2
0

1
0

9
R

7
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 a
d

o
p
te

d
 t
o

w
a

rd
s
 

th
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
th

e
 n

a
tu

ra
l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

b
y
 e

n
s
u
ri

n
g
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 i
s
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

d
 a

n
d
 

lin
k
e
d

 t
o

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 a

n
d

 a
 s

y
s
te

m
 t
o

 m
o

n
it
o

r 
p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
th

e
m

 

3
R

o
g
e

r 
P

a
rk

in
/ 

A
m

a
n

d
a

 R
e

n
n

/
J
o

h
n

 P
a

lm
e

r/
 

N
e
il 

S
im

o
n
s
 

Y
e
s
 

S
B

C
 i
s
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
in

g
 i
ts

 C
O

² 
e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 

a
n

d
 c

a
rb

o
n

 f
o
o

tp
ri
n

t.
 W

o
rk

in
g

 i
n

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

 
th

e
 C

a
rb

o
n

 T
ru

s
t 
v
a

ri
o

u
s
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
re

 t
o

 b
e

 
im

p
le

m
e
n

te
d
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
is

 a
re

a
. 
 

A
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 u
s
in

g
 t
h

e
 

C
a
rb

o
n
 T

ru
s
ts

 m
e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 u

s
e
d

 b
y
 

S
lo

u
g
h
.

D
e
c
e

m
b
e

r 
2

0
0

9

Page 35



The Audit Commission 
The Audit Commission is an independent watchdog, driving economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in local public services to deliver better outcomes for everyone. 

Our work across local government, health, housing, community safety and fire and rescue 
services means that we have a unique perspective. We promote value for money for 
taxpayers, auditing the £200 billion spent by 11,000 local public bodies.  

As a force for improvement, we work in partnership to assess local public services and 
make practical recommendations for promoting a better quality of life for local people. 

Copies of this report 

If you require further copies of this report, or a copy in large print, in Braille, on tape, or in a 
language other than English, please call 0844 798 7070. 

© Audit Commission 2009 

For further information on the work of the Commission please contact: 

Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London SW1P 4HQ  

Tel: 0844 798 1212, Fax: 0844 798 2945, Textphone (minicom): 0844 798 2946 

www.audit-commission.gov.uk

Page 36



  

 

 Contact: Sudhi Pathak 

Tel:  01753 875374  

E-Mail: Sudhi Pathak@slough.gov.uk 

 

Audit Committee   

 

WORK OF INTERNAL AUDIT – SECOND QUARTER 2009/10 

Report by: Head of Audit and Risk Management 

Summary 
 

The Head of Audit and Risk Management produces a quarterly summary of the work of 
Internal Audit. 

This summary consists of a narrative in which the Head of Audit and Risk Management 
updates the Audit Committee on any changes in the audit plan and also highlights other areas 
that he feels the Audit Committee should be aware of. 

In addition to the narrative key matters are attached in the following statements: 

 

Statement 1: Comparison of allocation and use of resources to  30 September 2009 

Statement 2: Performance Indicators for quarter ending  30 September 2009 

Statement 3: Summary of Audit Reports Issued in Quarter 2 2009/10 

Statement 4: Audit Reports experiencing delay in implementation 

Statement 5:   Position on contingency audits/irregularity reviews up to 30 September 2009  

Statement 6: Irregularities finalised in 2009/10 

Statement 7: Risk Management Update 

Statement 8:    Annual Governance Statement 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM 6

Page 37



  

 

1 Head of Audit and Risk Management Update    
1.1 The audit plan continues to be risk based and as part of this process the Head of 

Audit meets with Directors and 2nd tier officers and discusses the following areas 
to inform the Audit Plan: 

• Key risks 

• Risk Management and Risk Registers 

1.2 The Head of Audit continues to monitor the risks in the organisation and update 
the Audit Plan to reflect changing priorities. Any changes in the plan are reported 
to the Audit Committee. 

1.3 Part of this process is the continuing identification of risk areas by ongoing 
consultation with relevant staff across the organisation and inclusion of high risk 
areas in the audit plan. 

1.4 The 2009/10 Audit Plan was agreed in March 2009 and had 1209 auditable days 
allocated across the organisation. During quarter one and quarter two 72  audit 
days have been added and 97 days have been deleted. The plan currently has 
1184 auditable days. The list of added and deleted items is provided in the table 
below. 

Audits added and deleted in 2009/10 

Audit Description Audit 
Days 

Status Comments 

IT Business 
Continuity 

7 added Audit added as this area is now ready 
to be audited 

Members Allowances 2 added Days added to initial 5 day allocation 
to allow work to be completed 

Planning Policy 
&Projects 

2 added As above 

Cippenham Library 6 added Replace combined Libraries Audit 

Langley Library 6 added As above 

Youth Service 10 added Replacement to deleted Music Service 
Audit 

FMSiS 10 added Management of the Financial 
Management Standard in Schools 
assessment process 

Business Continuity 
& Disaster Recovery 

9 added To replace school catering own 
provision 

Page 38



  

 

Audits added and deleted in 2009/10 

Audit Description Audit 
Days 

Status Comments 

Slough & Eton 
School 

10 added To replace Priory School 

Lavender Court  5 added To replace food & safety 

Respond 5 added To replace food & safety 

Cippenham & 
Langley Libraries 

10 deleted Need to be audited as separate 
entities 

Cippenham Library 6 deleted Libraries to be assessed by AD 

Music Service 10 deleted Satisfactory assurance in 2008/09 
replaced by Youth Service 

West Wing 10 deleted Facility to be closed  

SMT Priorities 10 deleted 10 days allocated to FMSiS 
management 

Britwell Library 10 deleted Libraries to be assessed by AD 

Food & Safety 10 deleted Low priority area replaced by high 
priority Respond & Lavender Court 

Programmes & 
Procurement 

15 deleted Included in Procurement Audit 

School Catering Own 
Provision 

10 deleted Replaced by higher priority Business 
Continuity and Disaster Recovery 

Priory School 6 deleted Replaced by Montem Primary FMSiS 

    

Net change 25 deleted  

 

Staffing 

1.5 The Head of Audit and Risk Management has four key areas of responsibility: 

• Internal Audit 

• Risk Management 

• Insurance 

• Health and Safety 
 

Page 39



  

 

1.6 The Head of Audit is also leading on Business Continuity with the aim of handing 
over responsibility once the process is in place. 

Internal Audit 

1.7 The Internal Audit section consists of two audit manager posts and seven auditor 
posts. The section is currently carrying vacancies for one audit manager and two 
auditors. 

1.8 The vacancies are being covered by a partnering arrangement with Deloitte and 
Touche (D&T). The appointment of D&T was agreed by both the procurement and 
legal section in Slough BC for 2008/09. For 2009/10 the services of D&T have 
been procured through a framework agreement with the London Borough of 
Croydon. 

1.9 Although D&T have a robust quality review process in place the Head of Audit 
quality reviews all reports before they are issued. A review of the partnering 
arrangement with D&T was carried out in April 2009. This review determined that 
the partnering arrangements with Deloitte provide access to scarce expertise and 
also provides good value for money. 

1.10 A specific number of audits have been allocated to D&T covering both General 
Audits and IT audits. 

Insurance 

1.11 In 2008/09 the insurance section comprised of an insurance and risk manager 
and an insurance assistant. A business process re-engineering exercise was 
carried out and this has enabled the section to be restructured. The effect has 
been to delete the post of the insurance assistant. The impact on workloads will 
be kept under review to ensure that service levels for the organisation are 
maintained. 

1.12 The impact on the delivery of Risk Management services will be particularly 
important and I will continue to update the Audit Committee on this aspect during 
the 09/10 financial year. 

Health and Safety 

1.13 In 2008/09 the section comprised three full time posts and one part time post. The 
full time posts were the Senior Health and Safety advisor, one Health and Safety 
advisor and one Health and Safety Trainee. The part time post was that of a 
health and safety advisor. 

1.14 As part of efficiency savings the section has been restructured with the deletion of 
the Senior Health and Safety advisor and the Health and Safety trainee posts. A 
post of Health and Safety Manager has been created with a wider corporate 
remit. 

 

 

Page 40



  

 

Counter Fraud arrangements 

1.15 Internal Audit has taken a number of steps to ensure that counter fraud 
arrangements in Slough Borough Council are effective. These include both 
proactive and reactive anti fraud arrangements. 

Policy Updates 

1.16 The anti fraud and corruption policy was updated in March 2009 and was 
approved by CMT on 01/04/09. The fraud response plan was also approved by 
CMT on 01/04/09. These documents outline the roles and responsibilities of 
officers and members and the actions they should take in the event of a fraud 
occurring. 

Training 

1.17 In May 2009 SBC purchased an electronic antifraud training package to further 
raise antifraud awareness amongst staff. The training package is web based and 
highlights 

Ø staff and management responsibilities in respect of fraud 
Ø how to combat fraud and create an anti fraud culture 
Ø how to detect potential fraud and 
Ø what actions to take if fraud is detected. 

1.18 The training package tutorial takes approximately 30 to 40 minutes to complete 
and is followed by a test of knowledge. A log is kept of those employees who 
have completed the test. 

1.19 The original target was to roll out the training in Quarter 2, however, due to 
capacity within the internal audit section this will now be rolled out in quarter 3.  

Anti Fraud Plan 

1.20 The audit work carried out by Internal Audit and the work carried out by the 
Housing Benefit Fraud Unit contribute to the anti fraud arrangements in the 
organisation. These activities have been identified and brought together in one 
document to enable further clarity in respect of anti fraud work being carried out. 
This was presented informally at the previous audit committee. The antifraud plan 
is presented formally at this Audit Committee at Appendix 5 

Corporate Fraud 

1.21 In order to strengthen the anti fraud arrangements in the Council, the Head of 
Audit and the Head of the Housing Benefit Fraud Unit have been discussing the 
possibility of creating a Corporate Fraud Unit.  

1.22 The principle of the formation of a corporate fraud unit was agreed at Audit 
Committee and is being jointly pursued by the Head of Audit and the Head of the 
Housing Benefit Fraud Unit. This will utilise the existing skills and information in 
the two sections and will not create a separate unit but will involve joint working. 

Page 41



  

 

1.23 Two key elements have brought this to the forefront for consideration. 

1.24 Firstly the removal of the central government performance indicator BVPI76 which 
measured the number of sanctions taken against Housing Benefit fraudsters. This 
means that the Housing Benefit Fraud Unit (HBFU) will set its own target 
internally. Although the HBFU may keep the performance indicator at the same 
level, or indeed increase it, there is an option to reduce it. 

1.25 Secondly there have been changes in the National Fraud Initiative (NFI). The NFI 
collates information from various public bodies and compares data to identify 
potential fraudulent or duplicate claims and applications for a variety of Council 
services. The information is also used by Revenue and Customs to detect 
unidentified tax liabilities and instances of tax evasion. 

1.26 The broadening of the NFI and the removal of BVPI76 provide the opportunity to 
consider reprioritising the resources of both the HBFU and Internal Audit. The 
Head of Audit and Head of the HBFU are intending to review the NFI matches to 
determine whether a corporate fraud approach would be beneficial. The key 
criteria will be the number of matches and whether the expertise of the HBFU and 
Internal Audit will be better applied to examining these matches or whether 
officers in the areas effected should take the matches forward. 

1.27 The categories covered by NFI are listed below. The last three areas relating to 
Transport passes, Insurance claimants and Licences were new in 2008/09. The 
data for Council Tax and Electoral Registration is also new this year and was 
subject to legal review prior to being provided.  

Ø Payroll and pensions payroll  
Ø Trade creditors' payment history and standing data  
Ø Housing  
Ø Housing benefits 
Ø Council tax  
Ø Electoral register  
Ø Students eligible for a loan 
Ø Private supported care home residents  
Ø Transport passes and permits (including residents' parking, blue badges 

and concessionary travel)  
Ø Insurance claimants  
Ø Licences - Market trader/operator, Taxi driver and (new) Personal licences 

to supply alcohol 
 

1.28 The complete set of NFI results were received in May 2009. An initial review of 
the NFi matches showed that there were 3,734 matches of which 2,948 were high 
level matches. 

1.29 The potential for the formation of a corporate fraud unit will be examined after the 
outcomes of the initial review of the NFi matches has been carried out and will be 
reported to the audit committee. It is expected that the outcomes of the initial 
review will be completed by the end of January 2010. 

Page 42



  

 

1.30 The Audit Commission requested additional data sets in October 2009 and a 
further set of data will be submitted in December 2009. The matches should be 
available for review by the end of February 2010. 

 

1.31 Internal Audit have 

Ø identified the relevant officers officers dealing with each area 
Ø distributed the matches to the relevant staff 
Ø provided training to relevant staff to enable them to carry out preliminary 

investigative work 
Ø instructed the Housing and Council Tax Benefits section to update the 

Audit Commission website directly 
Ø instructed all other areas to forward information to Internal Audit in order to 

update the Audit Commission website 
 
1.32 Any areas that require further investigation are carried out as follows 

Ø Housing and Council Tax Benefit by Housing Benefit Fraud Unit 
Ø Council Tax by the Council Tax team 
Ø Electoral register queries by the electoral registratuion section 
Ø Any other queries by Internal Audit 

 

IT Audit 

1.33 The Head of Audit and Risk Management is a qualified “Certified Information 
Systems Auditor”. However, the Internal Audit section currently lacks auditors with 
an expertise in IT audit. This is an area where suitable expertise is scarce and the 
use of a partnering arrangement provides best value for money. 

1.34 An ‘IT audit needs assessment’ was carried out to identify all areas of risk in IT 
and to provide an allocation of audit days for each area. The remit of this work 
deliberately did not take into account available resources or funding to carry out 
the identified areas of work and consequently 165 audit days were identified for 
08/09 and 155 audit days for 09/10. 

1.35 The Head of Audit has reviewed the audits identified through the IT audit needs 
assessment and prioritised these over a three year period. The allocation for 
2008/09 was 68 days and the allocation for 2009/10 is 81 days of IT audit. 

Audit methodology 

1.36 All staff have received appropriate in house training and operate using a risk 
based audit methodology. One to one coaching continues on a regular basis to 
ensure quality of audits. 

1.37 An electronic audit package, to supplement the risk based audit methodology, has 
been identified. This package will integrate time recording and management 
information and will reduce administration time within the Internal Audit section 
thus further enhance the productivity of the audit section and provide a more 

Page 43



  

 

focussed audit service. More importantly the package will allow real time 
electronic review of audit files and reports. 

1.38 The Head of Audit has viewed a demonstration of the electronic audit package 
and has attended a training session with an organisation who have purchased the 
product. 

1.39 The purchase and introduction of the electronic audit package is now on hold 
waiting for the shared service development. The introduction of the electronic 
audit package is likely to be introduced after shared services has been further 
developed. 

External Audit 

1.40 Internal Audit continues to work closely with the Councils external auditors i.e. the 
Audit Commission. Regular meetings are held between the Strategic Director of 
Resources, the Director of Improvement and Development, the Head of Audit and 
representatives from the Audit Commission. 

1.41 Key areas of concern or good practice are shared and highlighted. Planned work 
is discussed and this aids a coordinated approach to audit work across the 
organisation and avoids duplication. 

1.42 The detailed work carried out by Internal Audit is discussed at regular meetings 
between the Head of Audit, the Audit Manager and the Audit Commission. At 
these meetings the work required is discussed and agreement reached on who 
will carry out the work, the timings of the audits and how best to reduce the 
inspection burden on auditees. 

1.43 These meetings ensure that assurance is taken and provided wherever possible 
with clear protocols of work. 

1.44 This process has worked extremely well and the working relationship between the 
Internal Audit section and the Audit Commission remains strong and productive. 

Effectiveness of Internal Audit 

1.45 The effectiveness of Internal Audit is reviewed throughout the year using 
feedback forms from auditees and by actively seeking feedback from Directors 
and Assistant Directors in respect of Internal Audit performance. 

1.46 The Audit Commission carried out a review of Internal Audit in 2007 and all 
recommendations from that report have now been implemented and reviewed by 
the Audit Commission. 

1.47 Internal Audit and Risk Management have also been independently reviewed as 
part of the CIPFA Financial Model framework. The results are awaited and any 
areas for improvement will be reported to the Audit Committee together with an 
action plan for implementation. 

1.48 It is proposed to carry out a peer review with a neighbouring authority in 2009/10 

Page 44



  

 

Financial Management System in Schools (FMSiS) 

1.49 The FMSiS programme started in 2006/07 and required a judgement to be made 
on all Secondary, Primary and Special schools in respect of the adequacy of the 
governance and financial arrangements in each school. 

1.50 The judgements on the adequacy of the arrangements in place at schools can 
only be made by approved assessors of which the Internal Audit section is one. 

1.51 There are 41 secondary, primary and special schools in SBC and these should all 
be accredited by the end of the 09/10 financial year. 

1.52 To date 29 schools have been accredited as having successfully reached the 
required standard. 

1.53 Five schools have been judged as not yet having achieved the standard required 
for accreditation and both Internal Audit and Education Finance are actively 
assisting the schools to address the identified weaknesses.

Page 45



  

 

STATEMENT 1 

Comparison of allocation and use of resources –to 30 
September 2009 

 ANNUAL AUDIT 

PLAN ALLOCATION - 

ORIGINAL 

ANNUAL AUDIT 

PLAN ALLOCATION - 

LATEST  

ACTUAL USED 

TO END OF 

QUARTER 2 

   Days % 

PLANNED AUDITS   

Fundamental (Core) Systems Audits 392 401 12 3

Non-Core Systems Audits 743 702 240 34

IT Audit 74 81 23 29

TOTAL PLANNED AUDITS: 1209 1184 275 23

   

OTHER AUDIT WORK   

Old Year Audits 10 10 11 110

Follow Ups 40 40 45 113

Contingency Audits 42 42 17 40

Investigations 40 65 75 115

TOTAL OTHER AUDIT WORK 132 157 148 94

   

TOTAL AUDIT DAYS   

   

OTHER CHARGEABLE   

Chargeable Management 324 324 132 41

TOTAL CHARGEABLE DAYS 324 324 132 41

   

AUDIT MANAGEMENT & ADMIN   

Non Chargeable Management 76 76 65 85

Management Information/Admin 121 121 48 40

TOTAL MANAGEMENT & ADMIN 197 197 113 58

   

LEAVE & TRAINING   

Statutory Leave 
 

80 80 24 30

Annual Leave 309 309 121 39

Special Leave 145 145 65 45

Sick Absence 80 80 65 81

Professional Training 124 124 5 4

TOTAL LEAVE & TRAINING 738 738 280 38

TOTAL STAFF DAYS 2600 2600 948 36

 

Vacancies are used to fund work from Deloitte & Touche. 

These days will be applied and reported when draft reports are issued.  

Page 46



  

 

STATEMENT 2 

Performance Indicators for quarter ending 30 September 2009 

 Planned work 
 
 Current 
 Quarter Year to 30.06.09 

  %        % 
  
Proportion of planned audit work completed 14                       17 

In addition, during the second quarter of 2009-10, an additional 35 % of the plan was work in 
progress  

 Recommendations 

 Recommendations: Made Agreed  Proportion agreed 

         Current years audits 

                                   Quarter               16           16                      100% 

                                        Year                    27           27                      100% 

Follow-up responses received« 

 Recommendations 

 Agreed Implemented  Proportion implemented 

 Quarter 27 17                         63% 

    

« NB: statistics of recommendations implemented are based on a six month follow up 

review after the issue of a final report. Also note that some recommendations may not 
have been due for implementation within 6 months of the issue of the final report. 

 Survey results received 

 Quarter Year to 30.09.09 

 Proportion   Proportion 

 Good                               67                                        67 

 Satisfactory                     33                                        33 

 Poor                                          

 Unsatisfactory                                             

 

  

Page 47



  

 

STATEMENT 3 

Summary of Audit Reports Issued in Quarter 2 2009/10 

3.1 The following Audits received a Satisfactory Assurance 

Ø Members Allowances 
Ø Local Land Charges 
Ø Domiciliary Care In-House 
Ø Respond 
Ø Lavender Court 
Ø Planning Policy & Projects 
Ø Public Transport (Contracts & Concessions) 

 

3.2 The following audits received Limited Assurance 

Direct Payments 

3.3 Legislation provides that, following an assessment, a client or carer can 
opt to receive a payment to procure their own service rather than 
receive service from Social Services. Payments can only be made 
using Direct Payments (DP) against a client or carer’s needs as stated 
in a care plan. 

3.4 We made ten recommendations, four of which related to the provision 
of an updated policy and six which related to processes and other 
controls 

• An up-to-date Direct Payments policy should 
Ø be produced, and its contents made known to all relevant staff 

and be subject to regular review 
Ø identify the level and nature of support to be provided to Direct 

Payment clients 
Ø include a requirement to assess the frequency of support visits 

necessary 
Ø determine the monitoring returns necessary 

• Implement a process to monitor whether the option of direct payments 
has been offered to the client – either in supervision or via an exception 
report. 

• Ensure the policy covering care plan reviews is up-to-date. 

• Annual care plan reviews should be carried out in line with approved 
policy. 

• A succession plan should be produced, which includes short and long-
term absences, as well as vacancy of the post. 

Ø include a protocol for the collection and recording of returns 
made i.e. by whom and how regularly, and 

Ø a policy decision 

Page 48



  

 

• In addition to a completed proforma, the client should be asked to 
provide a copy of the opening bank account statement, which should 
be verified to the details stated on the proforma. The copy of the bank 
account statement should be retained on file. 

• The client’s completed proforma, which states their bank account 
details, should be sent to Finance to retain on file. A copy should also 
be held on the paper file in the social work office. 

 
Recommendations not implemented 
 
3.5 The Audit Committee in September received a report outlining the 

recommendations not implemented in respect of Physical Disability, 
Other Care and Support. The key recommendations not implemented 
were 
Ø ensuring that annual reviews of client needs are carried out 

(significant) 
Ø Periodic client satisfaction surveys to be carried out (medium) 
 

3.6 In discussion with client management we have established that the 
annual care reviews have been carried out. We were unable to confirm 
this at the time of the audit  as the relevant manager was unable to 
correctly navigate the computerised Integrated Adult System. In 
addition two hard copy files were maintained and the one that was 
shown to Internal Audit did not contain any care plan updates 

 
3.7 In the second quarter of 2009/10 fourteen of the twenty-four medium 

and significant risk recommendations followed up were not 
implemented. These are outlined below: 

3.8 Travel & Subsistence 
Three medium risk recommendations made and not implemented 

 
3.9 Postal & Dip 

One medium recommendation not implemented out of five agreed 
 
3.10 Governor Services & Training 

Two medium and one significant risk recommendations not 
implemented out of six agreed recommendations 

 
3.11 Home to School Transport 

One medium and one significant risk recommendations not 
implemented out of the four agreed 

 
3.12 Mental Health  

One medium risk recommendation not implemented out of two agreed 
 
3.13 Communications News 

One medium risk recommendation has not been implemented. The 
remaining three recommendations were low risk. 

Page 49



  

 

 
3.14 Environmental Services 

Three medium risk recommendations not implemented out of the three 
agreed. These are to be followed up again in December 2009. 

 
 
3.15 As agreed at the last audit committee, where these have not 

subsequently been implemented, the responsible officers will be given 
an opportunity to explain why at the next audit committee. 

 
 
 

Page 50



  

 

STATEMENT 4 

Audit Reports experiencing delay in implementation 

4.1 Outstanding Follow ups 

Audit no and title          Department name Final 
report 
issued 

Follow-up Due 

    

 
Note: Follow up of recommendations is carried out with every audit and/or 
after 6 months. 

 

4.2 Outstanding drafts  

Audit title Department name Draft sent Contact name 

    

There are no draft reports for which we are awaiting a response 

 

Page 51



  

 

 

 STATEMENT 5 

Position on contingency audits/irregularity reviews up 
to 30 September 2009 
 

5.1 Contingency Audits  

Description Total 

Days to 
30/09/09 

Current position 

 Housing Management Information 
system 

1.0 On-going with significant issues 

 

5.2 Irregularity reviews 

Description Total 

Days to 
30/09/09 

Current position 

 Overpayment to Care leaver 1.0 Initial report and recommendations issued. Awaiting a 
response to finalise the report 

 ALMO investigation 15.0 Disciplinary process completed. 

 Allegation of Personal business 
being managed from SBC 
premises 

2.0 Management investigation currently underway 
following Internal Audit advice 

 Supported Living Financial 
Irregularities 

50 Audit investigation complete. Currently liaising with 
Police. 

Page 52



  

 

STATEMENT 6 

Irregularities finalised in 2009/10 
 

E-mail abuse complaint in CWB directorate 

6.1 An offensive email was sent by an employee of Slough Borough Council 
to another employee of Slough Borough Council. After investigation it 
was found that the email originated from a personal e-mail account 
rather than a work account. 

6.2 The officer concerned was reminded of the email policy and no further 
action was taken 

  

Query on payment card usage 

6.3 A number of payments made using a payment card issued to the 
Creative Academy Co-ordinator in the Community & Wellbeing 
Directorate were identified as potentially personal rather than business. 

6.4 An investigation showed that all the payments identified were made for 
business and that a management trail existed for each one. 

6.5 It was further established that where appropriate, the suppliers had been 
invited to apply for inclusion on I-Proc so that the card would not need to 
be used in future for similar purchases.  

Financial Irregularities at Longcroft residential home 

6.6 On 1st December 2008 an irregularity in the funds held at Phoenix Day 
Centre was identified by the Assistant Unit Manager and reported to the 
Group/Locality Manager and Director of Community and Wellbeing. The 
allegation indicated a potential theft of £670 from the Phoenix Day 
Centre. The matter was reported immediately to the Council’s Internal 
Audit Team. 

6.7 On 2nd December 2008 and following the initial management 
investigation, the Administration Officer at Longcroft Residential Home, 
an employee of the Council, was suspended in respect of the alleged 
theft. The matter was reported to Thames Valley Police, who requested 
the Council complete and report back the findings of the internal 
investigations.  

6.8 A full disciplinary investigation and Internal Audit investigation have been 
simultaneously undertaken into the management of finances at the 
Phoenix Day Centre and Longcroft Residential Home where 
administrative officer also worked. The administrative officers 

Page 53



  

 

responsibilities included the handling and management of residents 
personal accounts. 

6.9 The administrative officer was dismissed with immediate effect. The 
findings of the investigation were reported to Thames Valley Police, who 
on the 25th March arrested the administrative officer and pressed 
charges. 

6.10 The police requested a report from a forensic accountant in order to 
pursue prosecution. Given the estimated cost is approximately £8,000, 
and maybe higher, the Interim Strategic Director of Resources felt that 
the cost could not be justified. 

6.11 There were a total of 24 clients at the Longcroft site. Internal audit 
examined the personal and pension accounts of residents. Irregularities 
were found in relation to three of the residents’ accounts totalling 
£14,000 

6.12 In a meeting held on 12th March 2009, Internal Audit confirmed to the 
Directorate of CWB that they are satisfied that the required and correct 
procedures for the management of client finances are being 
appropriately deployed in the Council’s remaining residential care 
homes. 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Page 54



  

 

STATEMENT 7 

7 Risk Management Update 

7.1 This update report focuses on 

Ø the framework in place for updating Senior Management on Risk 
Management 

Ø the key actions taken in the quarter July 2009 to September 
2009 

Ø the proposed actions for the quarter October 2009 to December 
2009 

Ø the actions taken to mitigate the risks identified within the 
Corporate Risk Register 

Ø relevant insurance actions  

Risk Management updates to Senior Management 

7.2 There is a Corporate Risk Register in place. 

7.3 Risk registers are in place for each of the Directorates. 

7.4 Software has been purchased and installed to enhance the monitoring 
and reporting of risk management throughout the authority. 

7.5 CMT receive formal reports providing quarterly updates on Risk 
Management issues. These include 

Ø Actions taken to mitigate identified risks 
Ø Movements of risks between the red, amber and green status 
Ø New and emerging risks 
Ø Updates on areas where risks have not been addressed in order 

that CMT can take informed decisions on allocation of resources 

7.6 Internal Audit and Risk Management regularly attend SMTs to discuss 
and update Risk Registers and also provide training as and when 
required. The Risk Management profile is currently high and SMTs are 
inviting Internal Audit and Risk Management to attend SMTs in order to 
keep Risk Registers updated and relevant. 

7.7 This is a positive situation as it demonstrates ownership of Risks by 
Directorates and that Risk Management continues to be further 
embedded across the organisation. 

Page 55



  

 

7.8 Updated Risk Management Guidance has been published on the 
intranet along with the corporate risk register and all individual 
directorate risk registers. 

Key actions taken for the quarter July 2009 to September 2009 

7.9 The majority of risk management work during quarter 1 and quarter 2 
centred around the issue of the “Swine Flu” pandemic and ensuring 
that business critical areas maintained an adequate level of service in 
the event of loss of staff through either having “Swine Flu” or caring for 
others with “Swine Flu”. 

7.10 The Head of Internal Audit and the Risk and Insurance Officer have 
obtained the Business Continuity Plans from key suppliers and 
reviewed them to ensure that are fit for purpose to deal with the 
predicted Swine Flu pandemic. The outcome of these reviews were 
reported to the Strategic Influenza Control Group. 

7.11 The Strategic Influenza Control Group has fed back to the suppliers at 
the Community & Wellbeing Provider Forum on the 30th October. A 
“Good Practice” version has also been sent out to suppliers as 
requested at the Forum. 

7.12 In order to ensure that the Council’s own services are able to provide 
business critical services the business continuity plans of the 43 
business critical services have been quality reviewed and amendments 
have been suggested in the majority of cases  

7.13 As stated in 7.9 above the “Swine Flu” issue has taken up much of the 
time available to deal with some of the proposed actions for the first 
quarter as described in the previous report. Therefore those actions will 
need to be deferred until the following quarter. 

Key actions proposed for the quarter October 2009 to December 2009 

7.14 The roll out of the Risk Management system has been delayed due to 
conflicting priorities such as Swine Flu. With the roll out of the Risk 
Management Database it is envisaged that a Risk Management 
Champion will be nominated in each department. The Risk 
Management Champion will be responsible for overseeing and 
monitoring the risks that are identified within their department. 
Ownership of risks will continue to sit within departments. 

7.15 The role of each Risk Management Champion will be formally agreed 
and training will be provided on an ongoing basis. 

7.16 The Director of Improvement and Development will identify actions to 
further strengthen the governance and Risk Management 
arrangements of SBC partnerships. 

 

Page 56



  

 

Update of Departmental Risk Registers. 

7.17 The Risk and Insurance Officer will circulate current risk registers to 
each Directorate with two options for update: 

Either the Risk & Insurance Officer can meet Assistant Directors 
individually to facilitate in the update their particular part of the risk 
register, 

Or departments may wish to update their risk registers at an SMT 
meeting with or without facilitation from the Risk & Insurance 
Officer. 

Update of the Corporate Risk Register. 

7.18 Once the departmental risk registers have been updated the Corporate 
Risk Register will also be updated and presented to the Audit 
Committee. 

Further embed Risk Management in the organisation and ensure ownership 
moves from the centre out to departments. 

7.19 In order that departments may update their own risk registers without 
recourse to the Risk and Insurance Officer an identified member in  
each department will need to be trained to enter, update and report on 
risks using the Risk Management Software 

7.20 It is envisaged that the introduction of more localised control over risk 
registers will encourage the completion and use of risk registers 
throughout the organisation. 

Training  

7.21 As identified above a member of each department is required to 
undergo training so they are able to update departmental risk registers 
independently of the Risk and Insurance Officer. 

7.22 A Members training pack for risk management has been produced and 
two training sessions will be delivered on 10th December 2009 with a 
further two sessions on 16th January 2010. 

7.23 Specific risk management training in respect of the Shared Services 
project is being planned. 

7.24 It is also proposed to facilitate a workshop for Directors and Assistant 
Directors concentrating on Supply Chain Management to assist with 
the risk management issues surrounding the Shared Services project 

7.25 This training is in line with the information supplied to the Audit 
Committee dated 14th September 2009 

7.26 The newly appointed Director of Resources is reviewing the approach 

Page 57



  

 

to Risk Management and the role of Risk Management Champions. 
Any changes in methodology will be reported to the Audit Committee. 

Relevant Insurance Actions 

7.27 The Insurance portfolio is due for renewal in April 2010 and work has 
continued through quarter 2. The Insurance Specification has been 
produced with a view to receiving as many responses as possible from 
the Insurance market. 

7.28 The Insurance tender Specification was produced at the end of August 
in line with the timetable and publicised as required under the OJEU 
regulations. 

7.29 The Insurance Portfolio Tenders were returned by prospective insurers 
in mid-October. These tenders will be evaluated in November 2009. 

7.30 A report recommending the insurers for the next three years, with the 
possibility of extending for a further two years, will be produced by 
December 2009 and discussed at CMT and then forwarded to the 
appropriate member forum agreement.  

 

 

Page 58



  

 

Statement 8 

8 Annual Governance Statement 

8.1  From 2007/08, Local Authorities are required to produce an Annual 
Governance Statement (AGS). 

8.2 The AGS states whether the Governance arrangements in the 
organisation are effective and that any of areas of concern have been 
identified. An action plan should be put in place to address the areas of 
concern identified. 

8.3 The most senior officer and the most senior member have joint 
responsibility as signatories for its accuracy and completeness.  

8.4 The AGS was signed by the Leader of the Council and the Chief 
Executive in June 2009. 

8.5 The 2008/09 AGS identified six areas of concern as  follows; 

a) Project Management 
b) Partnerships and governance arrangements 
c) Harmonisation/ Staffing Issues 
d) Community Cohesion 
e) Business Continuity 
f) Impact of world Economic climate 

8.6  Actions have been identified to address these areas of concern. 

8.7 Risk management features strongly in the AGS process. It supports the 
coordinating role of the corporate group by advising on risks to achieving 
corporate objectives and statutory requirements, which are set out in 
corporate, directorate and departmental risk registers, and how they are 
managed. 

Ø Assurance statements together with reference to sources of assurance 

Ø Timetable with dates for review by audit committee, date for sign off by 
CE and leader, date for publication, date for presentation to full council 

8.8 In line with previous years an overview of the AGS is provided for 
members 

Ø Appendix 1 - One page overview 

Ø Appendix 2 – Diagramatic representation of the AGS methodology 

Ø Appendix 3 – Timetable for AGS methodology 

Ø Appendix 4 – Directors Assurance Statement 

Page 59



  

 

Appendix 1 

THE ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

AN OVERVIEW 

1. From 2007/08, Local Authorities need to produce an Annual Governance 
Statement (AGS).  This replaces the Statement on Internal Control (SIC). 

2. The Annual Governance Statement (AGS) is a key corporate document. 
The most senior officer and the most senior member have joint 
responsibility as signatories for its accuracy and completeness. 

3. The AGS should be approved at a meeting of the authority or delegated 
committee. 

4. As a corporate document the AGS should be owned by all senior officers 
and members of the authority.   

5. The signatories need to ensure that the AGS accurately reflects the 
governance framework for which they are responsible. In order to 
achieve this they are likely to rely on many sources of assurance, such 
as: 

• directors and managers; 

• the responsible financial officer; 

• the monitoring officer; 

• members; 

• the Head of Internal Audit;  

• performance and risk management 

• third-parties, e.g. partnerships; 

• external audit and other review agencies. 

6. The statement should be continuously reviewed throughout the year, 
however, in practice, authorities with well-developed arrangements will 
find that it will emerge from the routine governance and managerial 
processes (which necessarily operate continuously).  

7. Risk management should feature strongly in the AGS process. It should 
support the co-ordinating role of the corporate group by advising on risks 
to achieving corporate objectives and statutory requirements, which are 
set out in corporate, directorate and departmental risk registers, and how 
they are managed. 

8. The Head of Internal Audit should provide a written annual report to 
those charged with governance timed to support the Annual Governance 
Statement. The review of the effectiveness of the system of internal audit 
helps to ensure that the opinion in the annual report of the Head of 
Internal Audit may be relied upon as a key source of evidence in the 
AGS.  

Page 60



 

 

Appendix 2 

Authority & 

Directorate Policies, 

Business Plans and 

Risk Registers

Annual Governance

Statement

Framework - Key documents/process guidelines 
• Performance management

• Business strategy and planning process

• Budget and budgetary control

• Code of corporate governance

• Project management/  Risk Management / counter Fraud 

Policy

• Ethical Governance

• Policies, procedures, codes of conduct

• Partnership protocol Approval by Committee or by 
members of body meeting as a whole

AGS Working group is 

responsible for 

drafting AGS evaluate 

assurances and 
supporting evidence

• Annual Plan

• Management 

letter

• Audit Opinion

• Use of 

Resources

• Ad hoc Projects

• Departmental 

governance

External Audit 

• Embedded 

system

• Operates 

throughout 

organisation

• Internal & 

external reviews

• Action orientated

• National/local 

KPIs

• Periodic progress 

reports

• S151 assurance

• Treasury 

Management 

• Group Accounts 

report

• Annual 

management 

assurances

• Periodic reports

• Cascaded 

through all 

employees

• Control & risk 

self-assessment 

questionnaires

• Risk Management 

Group reports

• Embedded in policies 

& planning

• Effectiveness 

evaluated

• Annual questionnaire

• Diagnostic survey

• Cascaded through all 

employees

• Results analysed by 

RMG and/or IA

Risk 

Management

Assurances by 

managers

Financial 

assurance

Other sources 

of assurance

Performance 

Management

• Monitoring Officer’s 

report

• Fraud reports and 

investigations

• Reports by Inspectors

• Best Value reports

• Post Implementation 

reviews of projects

• Working Party reports

• Efficiency statements

Internal Audit

• Charter and Strategy

• Approved risk-based 

plans

• Periodic & annual 

reports to audit 

committee, including 

Head of Internal 

Audit’s opinion

Review of the 

effectiveness 

of the system 

of Internal 

Audit 

• CIPFA Code 

compliance 

assessment

• Client  and 

Management opinion

• External audit opinion

• Effectiveness of Audit 

Committee

Provide assurance on adequacy and

effectiveness of controls over key risks

 

P
a
g
e
 6

1



 

 

 

 

Appendix 3 

Timetable for Annual Governance Statement 2009/10 

 

Date Action Responsibility Notes 

February  First meeting of AGS working group Monitoring Officer HOIARM, Risk Officer, Strategic Director of Resources, 
Monitoring Officer, relevant ADs and Directors. 

Early 
February  

Circulate revised self-certification checklists to 
managers 

Head Of Internal Audit 
and Risk Management 

This gives managers time to think through what the 
forms are asking, and how they should respond 

Mid 
February 

Managers complete self-certification forms and 
raise issues with directors and start to formulate 
action plans 

All Senior Managers Managers must ensure that their most serious 
concerns are fully shared with their directors 

Late 
February 

Managers begin to assemble and index evidence 
to support their declarations to directors 

All Senior Managers This is vital to the process – the Audit Commission 
have previously criticised the lack of evidence last year 

Late 
February 

Assemble other evidence of control from various 
sources 

AGS Working Group The Group as a whole must take responsibility for 
bringing it together 

March Prepare framework AGS: sketch in likely issues 
and feed back to directors 

AGS Working Group This will help ensure that directors’ declarations are 
complete and evidenced 

April Head Of Internal Audit and Risk Management’s 
annual report on control issues 

Head Of Internal Audit 
and Risk Management 

“Quality control” on info from other sources 

Mid to 
late April 

External audit management letter Audit Commission Important external source of assurance (and of issues 
to include) 

Early 
May 

Corporate Management Team review AGS, and 
take full ownership for it 

CMT There must be a strong sense of corporate ownership 

Mid May Sign AGS Chief Exec  and Lead 
Member 

Formal acceptance of responsibility for the internal 
control system 

Late May Submit AGS to Audit Commission for review Director of Resources  

P
a
g
e
 6

2



 

 

alongside accounts 

June Approval at Cabinet and Full Council   There must be a strong sense of corporate ownership 

P
a
g
e
 6

3



 

 

Appendix 4 

The Annual Governance Statement  

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2006 require the Council to include an Annual 
Governance Statement, (AGS), on the systems on internal control with the final 
accounts.  

The statement is a public assurance that the Council has sound systems of internal 
control, which help manage and control business risk. It is an important public 
expression of what the Council has done to ensure good business practice, high 
standards of conduct and sound governance. 

Each director must complete, certify and return a statement of their directorate’s 
current position, using the model format below. 

Directors may choose to ask their direct reports to provide subsidiary statements, but 
this is a matter of choice. 

Any system of internal control can provide only reasonable and not absolute 
assurance that assets are safeguarded, that transactions are authorised and properly 
recorded, and that material errors or irregularities are either prevented or will be 
detected in a timely way. 

Therefore, please complete the statement ‘to the best of your knowledge’ – it’s 
particularly important that you bring out the matters that are currently causing you 
concern. 

When you’ve completed and signed the statement, please send hard copy to 
the Head of Internal Audit & Risk Management, Sudhi Pathak.  

We suggest that you also keep a copy of your statement, cross-referenced to the 
sources of evidence you are relying on. 

It is likely that external audit will want to trace your assurance back to the source 
data. 

If you have any queries, please contact Sudhi Pathak (ext. 5374). 

If there are any issues of principle causing concern, please ask your representative 
on the corporate working group to raise these in the Annual Governance Statement 
Working Group discussions.

Page 64



 

 

Appendix 5 

Internal Audit - Fraud Audit Plan 2009-2012 

1. Introduction 

2. Fraud Overview 

3. New Fraud Strategy 

4. Preparation of the Plan 

 

1. Introduction 

This is the first Fraud Audit Plan drawn up for Slough Borough Council and forms 
a key part of the anti-fraud strategy. 

 

2. Fraud Overview 

 

2.1 Fraud is characterised by the following three elements 

• Deception – someone (usually but not always, or only, the victim) must have 
been misled in some way. 

• Dishonesty and intent – misleading must generally have been dishonest and 
intentional, not accidental. 

• Materiality of that deception – deception must have led to someone’s 
detriment or loss. A non-material misrepresentation causing no loss or 
detriment would not usually be deemed to be fraudulent. 

 

2.2 The Fraud Act 2006 

 This Act came into force on 15th January 2007 creating a general offence of fraud 
which can be committed in any one of three ways: 

Ø False representation (including Implicit misrepresentations) 

Ø Failure to disclose information 

Ø Abuse of position 

 

 This general offence focuses on intent as opposed to outcome – deception need 
not succeed to be liable. This may lead to its use in preference to other offences, 
under laws that focus on outcomes. 

 

 Examples of new offences created by the new Act are: 

• Obtaining services dishonestly; and 

• Possessing, making and supplying articles for use in frauds. 

 

Page 65



 

 

Additionally, it covers activities involving newer technologies by: 

• Updating the definition of an “account” in the Theft Act 1968 to include the 
electronic money accounts, as well as conventional bank accounts; 

• Covering the creation, adaptation or possession of software for use in fraud 

 

3   The New Fraud Strategy 

3.1 In order to strengthen the anti-fraud arrangements in the Council, the Head of 
Internal Audit and the Head of Housing Benefit Fraud Unit have been discussing 
the possibility of creating a Corporate Fraud Unit. The broadening of the scope of 
the National Fraud Initiative and the removal of BVPI76 allows for the 
reprioritising of available resources.  

3.2 The future approach to the countering, prevention and detection of fraud will 
centre on a comprehensive fraud risk assessment.  

 

4   Preparation of the Plan 

 

4.1  The Fraud Audit Plan is based on a risk assessment of work categories. These 
include the risk factors used to produce the audit plan i.e 

Ø Corporate importance – materiality and the impact on the organisation of 
service failures 

Ø Corporate sensitivity – reputational risk and management concerns or 
sensitivities  

Ø Control risk – previous history of problems 

Ø Inherent risk – complexity of the system, nature of the service and dealing with 
assets 

 

4.2  The plan for 2009-12 is attached. This includes the proposed anti-fraud work from 
Internal Audit and the Housing Benefit Fraud Unit.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 66



 

 

Slough Borough Council 

Strategic Fraud Audit Plan 2009-2012 
  

Planned 
days 

2009-10 

Planned 
days 

2010-11 

Planned 
days 

2011-12 

 Planned days 
over 3 years 

2009-12 

       

           

Housing & Council Tax Benefit         

HBMS data matching cases   35 35 35  105 

NFI data matching cases  20 20 20  60 

Working and claiming   245 245 245  735 

Not resident  65 65 65  195 

Multiple claims       0 

False identities / hijacked identities       

Living together   395 395 395  1185 

Sub letting and undeclared rental income       0 

Undeclared Student Loan        

Undeclared Student bursary        

Landlord fraud       

Undeclared capital and bank accounts        

Undeclared income        

Undeclared property in the UK and 
abroad     

 
 

Household  120 120 120  360 

Residency/Household enquiries  220 220 220  660 

Cash Collection        

Cash collection, receipting and banking   20 20 20  60 

Car Parking        

Car Parking income   15    15 

Blue Badges (incl NFI)         

Resident's Parking Permits (incl NFI)         

Page 67



 

 

Slough Borough Council 

Strategic Fraud Audit Plan 2009-2012 
  

Planned 
days 

2009-10 

Planned 
days 

2010-11 

Planned 
days 

2011-12 

 Planned days 
over 3 years 

2009-12 

Credit Income        

Debt management   15    15 

General Income   15 15 15  45 

Single Person Discount (Council Tax)   15 15 15  45 

NNDR   12    12 

Creditor Payments        

E-payments   10    10 

Procurement  10 15 15  40 

Creditors (incl NFI)  15 15 15  45 

Stores and Inventories        

Stores      10  10 

Control of Assets         

Contracts        

Construction contracts        

Community Care contracts      10  10 

Payroll / HR        

Employment checks      10  10 

Salaries, Wages and Pensions (incl NFI)   25 15 15  55 

Expense Claims        

Car, Travel and subsistence expenses     15 5  20 

Other        

Computer logs         

Leisure Services 1  15    15 

Freedom Passes (incl NFI)         

Bogus colleges         

Proceeds of crime         

Page 68



 

 

Slough Borough Council 

Strategic Fraud Audit Plan 2009-2012 
  

Planned 
days 

2009-10 

Planned 
days 

2010-11 

Planned 
days 

2011-12 

 Planned days 
over 3 years 

2009-12 

Care homes (incl NFI)   10    10 

Insurance (incl NFI)         

Licenses (incl NFI)     10 10  20 

Market traders (incl NFI)        

Housing Right To Buy / Benefit claimants) 
(incl NFI)     10  

 
10 

Management of projects        

Management of individual investigations         

Project Management Methodology  15 15 15   45 

sub-total programmed work        0 

Private Sector Housing Unit       0 

Grants        0 

Rehousing       0 

Housing Register Applications     8 10  18 

Registration Procedure        0 

Housing Register – Change of 
Circumstances       

 
0 

Temporary Accommodation       0 

Private Sector Leasing   8 14   22 

PSL - Hostels        0 

Temporary Accommodation Not Resident        0 

Homeless Persons Unit       0 

Applications        0 

Bed& Breakfast        0 

Bed& Breakfast not resident        0 

Invoicing        0 

Contractors        

Page 69



 

 

Slough Borough Council 

Strategic Fraud Audit Plan 2009-2012 
  

Planned 
days 

2009-10 

Planned 
days 

2010-11 

Planned 
days 

2011-12 

 Planned days 
over 3 years 

2009-12 

NFI data matching cases         

Internal staff cases         

Community Team         

Asylum Team      15  15 

People 1st Slough        

Sign-up         

Void Properties         

Not Resident and Sub-letting         

Change of Circumstances         

Right to buy    10   10 

sub-total planned work         

Contingency        

Ad-hoc investigations    73 157 272  502 

Total staff days   1373 1434 1552   4359 

 

 

 

Page 70



AGENDA ITEM 8

Page 71

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the last meeting held on 14th September 2009
	3 Procurement Report
	4 Audit Commission - Audit Progress Report November 2009
	5 Audit Commission - Use of Resources
	6 Work of Internal Audit - 2nd Quarter 2009/10
	8 Procurement Report Part II

